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Consohdated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2010

Report of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2010

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group and Company for
the year ended 31 December 2010

Principal activities

Cooper Gay (Holdings) Limited (“CGH™) 1s the Holding company of the Cooper Gay Group, incorporated m
England under Company Number 998625 The ulumate parent undertaking 1s Cooper Gay Swett & Crawford
Limited (“CGSC”} The primary business activities of the CGH Group are international 1nsurance and reinsurance
intermediation outside North Amenica The CGH Group operates from a number of offices worldwide and will
continue to carry on these activities

Business Review

Dunng the year the CGH Group continued to expand 1ts international network of new offices and has made targeted
mvestments in new people The strategy 1s expected to continue 1n the foreseeable future The CGH Group operates a
high margin business, with exciting organic growth prospects The key strategic development during the year was the
acquisition of the Company by CGSC as part of the wider business combination between Cooper Gay and the Swertt &
Crawford Group 1n the US, which completed on 9 July 2010 As part of the combination, the CGH Group’s US and
Canadian entities were transferred to HMSC Holdings Inc, the holding company of the Swett & Crawford Group
which 1s also owned by CGSC  Accordingly the CGH Group no longer has any direct substdiaries in the US or North
America, though the subsidiaries remain part of the wider CGSC Group

The CGH Group enjoys the benefits of being geographically diversified Against a backdrop of low economic
growth and tough trading conditions in mature markets, the CGH Group continued to grow strongly in emerging
markets, most notably Latin Amenca and Asia The financial cnisis did not have the impact that some expected of
reducing excess capital 1n the market Despite a lugh level of catastrophe driven market losses 1n 2010, the insurance
environment remains highly competitive and at vear end there was httle sign of a matenal hardeming of rates or of
capital scarcity

Current rating conditions appear hstorically unsustainable and there are potenual catalysts for change The
increased catastrophe environment 1n early 2011, 1n conjunction with further share buy-backs by insurers and
reinsurers, has reduced surplus capital in the market Nonetheless, 1 remains to be seen when increasing capital
pressures coupled with economuc factors will cause a significant change 1n the market

The global economy was showing signs of stabilising by the end of the year, but other than 1n emerging markets,
there was nc return to sustainable GDP growth during 2010 Looking forward, economic recovery 1n mature markets
15 expected to provide opportunities for improved organic growth

The Board’s approach to managing key nisks affecting the CGH Group 15 set out in this Report

Results and dividends

The CGH Group’s Operating Profit from continuing operations for the financial year as reported under IFRS 1s
£15 6m (2009 £12 5m), and the shareholders’ funds of the CGH Group total £39 4m (2009 £6 3m)

There was no dividend paid (2009 ml) during the year

Changes in share capital

On 11 May 2010 the authonsed share capital of the Company was 1ncreased from 18,000,000 1o 19,406,798
ordinary shares of 1p each
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Report of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2010 (continued)
Directors and their interests

The Directors who held office during the year and 10 the date of this report are given below

T C D Esser

J Flanagan

M Fonseca (resigned 9 July 2010)

V M Gould (resigned 26 March 2010)
K R Harns (resigned 9 July 2010)

AR Pauperio (resigned 9 July 2010)

P P Rock

J L P Whater (resigned 9 July 2010)
FC Witthun (resigned 9 July 2010)

] Magalhdes (Alternate - resigned 9 July 2010)
AV Ribeno (Alternate - resigned 9 July 2010)

Details of directors’ remuneration are shown 1n Note 5 of the financial statements No director has any beneficial
interest 1n the shares of any group companies other than the ultimate parent company Cooper Gay Swett & Crawford
Limited

Donations
The CGH Group made chanitable donations of £30,000 (2009 £31,000) during the year
Risk policies

The policies set by the Board of Directors 1n respect of Risk management are implemented by the Group’s Finance
and Operations departments

Financial Risk Management

1) Foreign currency risk

The CGH Group's cash flow, mncome statement and balance sheet are reported in Sterling Results are mevitably
therefore affected by fluctuations 1n exchange rates because a sigmficant portion of the CGH Group’s business
activities 1s conducted 1n US Dollars, and the CGH Group holds substanual US Dollar denominated assets The CGH
Group esumates that, other factors being constant and without taking into account the measures taken to mitigate this
nsk, a | cent decrease in the US Dollar exchange rate against Sterling 1 2010 would ncrease reported Operating
Profit by approximately £0 2m

This foreign currency nsk 1s mingated through the use of denvatve financial instruments The CGH Group estimates
that, a simutar strengtheming of 1 cent 1n the USD exchange rate against sterling 1n 2010 would have increased realised
losses 1n the year on these derivative financial instruments of approximately £0 2m

2) Interest rate risk

The CGH Group denves interest from cash held with financial institutions and pays nterest on vanable interest rate
loan obhgations The CGH Group estimates that, other factors being constant and without taking 1nto account the
measures taken to mitigate this risk, a 1% increase 1n interest rates 1n 2010 would have increased profit before tax by
approxmmately £0 2m The CGH Group seeks to it the adverse effects on the financial performance of the CGH
Group by monitonng debt finance and the related finance costs
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Report of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2010 (continued)

3) Credit risk

The challenging credit environment dunng the recent past has highlighted the importance of governance and
management of credit nsk  The CGH Group’s exposure to credit nisk takes the form of a loss that would be
recogmsed 1f counterparties farled to, or were unable to, meet their payment obligations These nisks may anse 1n
certain agreements 11 relation to amounts owed for fees and commissions, the use of denvative instruments, and the
mvestment of surplus cash balances The CGH Group 1s also exposed to poliical and economic nisk events, which
may cause non-payment of foreagn currency obligations to the CGH Group Poor economic conditions also increase
the likehihood of failure of compames n the sector, potentially including partners, contractors and suppliers The
CGH Group momtors 1ts credit risk through client acceptance procedures and credit control and holds 1ts cash with
financial msututions with a high credit raung The maximum credit nsk exposure to the CGH Group represents the
total of 1ts trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, investments & deposits classified as Available-for-
sale investments and denvative financial instruments classified as current and non-current assets At the balance sheet
date this amounted to £166 6m

4) Liquidity nisk

The CGH Group 1s also exposed to hiquidity nsks, including nisks associated with refinancing borrowings as they
mature, the nisk that borrowing facilities are not available to meet cash requirements and the nisk that financial assets
cannot readily be converted to cash without loss of value Failure to manage financing risks could have a materal
impact on the CGH Group’s cash flow, balance sheet and financial positton The CGH Group seeks to mimimise the
risk of uncertain funding 1n 1ts operations by borrowing within a spread of matunty periods Given the s1ze and nature
of operaticns, the CGH Group attempts to operate with 100% of 1ts debt being repayable within 5 years

Risk Management

The CGH Group actively manages the potential nisk of loss from nadequate or failed internal comntrols, service
providers or external events by implementing and momtoring benchmark controls throughout the business, and a
project to roll out nsk management throughout the CGH Group 1s underway The potental impact of control farlures
15 quantified and related to the effectiveness of the control, and this 1s reviewed by risk and control owners to
dentify where to focus resources Accountability 15 a key element of the group’s risk culture and ensuring risks are
clearly defined, understood, quantified and controlled ensures that individuals own and manage nsk The Board 1s
ulumately responsible for the CGH Group’s systems of internal control and for reviewing therr effectiveness

The quantative potental impact of nisks crystalhising, and the associated controls designed to mitigate those nisks are
captured in the scenario and stress testing work completed by the nsk management function, and includes an
analysis, which 1s reported throughout the corporate governance structure, of the potential impact on both caprtal
and cash This analysis 1s used to ensure nsks are effectively managed to an acceptable level within the CGH
Group’s nsk appetite Risks and their associated mitigating controls are signed off by nsk and control owners using
an onhne risk management tool, and the results are reported by nsk management

In commen with other insurance brokers the key nsks affecting the CGH Group are potential ‘errors and
omissions’, and regulatory comphance, and the focus of embedding risk management throughout the CGH Group 15
ensunag best practice controls are 1 place to mitigate these risks

The CGH Group's internal audit resource works closely with both compliance and nsk management resources as

well as business management to ensure a solution dnven and nsk based approach Together these functions ensure
the business has three lines of defence against the risks facing the CGH Group
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Report of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2010 (continued)

Employees

The Durectors recogmse that the continuing success of the CGH Group depends on 1ts employees and continues 10
adopt policies designed to attract, train and retain skilled and talented individuals  Consultation with employees has
continued at all levels with the aum of ensunng that views are considered when reaching decisions that may impact
the employees Commumcation with employees has continued through various means including newsletters,
Journals and regular briefing and update sessions

Equal opportunities

The CGH Group 1s an equal opportumties employer and bases decisions on mdividual ability regardless of race,
religion, gender, age, sexual onentation or disability

Applications for employment from disabled persons are given full consideration where the requirements of the job
can be adequately fulfilled by a disabled person In the event of an existing employee becoming disabled, the CGH
Group's policy 1s to provide, wherever praciicable, continuing employment under normal terms and conditions and
to provide traiming and career development and promoton 1dentical to that of a person who does not suffer from a
disability wherever appropnate

Independent auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated thewr willingness to continue 1n office and a resolution
that they be reappointed will be proposed at the annual general meeting

So far as each Director 15 aware, there 1s no relevant audit information (as defined m Section 668 of the Compames
Act 2006) of which the CGH Group’s auditors are unaware, and each director has taken all steps that he or she
ought to have taken as a director 1n order to make himself or herself aware of, and to establish that the auditers are
aware of, any relevant audit information

Directors’ responsibilities

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the CGH Group and of the profit or loss of the CGH Group for that peniod The
Directors are required to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless it 1s inappropnate to
presume that the CGH Group will conunue in business

The Directors confirm that suitable policies have been used and apphed consistently They also confirm that
reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates have been made 1n prepanng the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2010 and that apphcable accounting standards have been followed

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
tume the financial posiuon of the CGH Group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with
the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the CGH Group and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

By order of the Board

T

John Flanagan
Secretary
29 March 2011
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Consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2010

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
Continuing operations Notes £000 £'000
Fees and commussions ] 96,815 87,811
Investment income 3 422 656
Other operatung income 2 1,348 782
Other operatung costs 2 (79,542) (73.556)
Depreciauion, amortisation and impairment charges 2 (3,470) (3,145)
Operating profit 2 15,573 12,548
Analysed as:
Operating profit before exceptional items &
impairment charges 15,573 14,153
Exceptional items 2 - (1,603)
Operating profit 2 15,573 12,548
Finance costs 4 (6,330) (4,018)
Finance income 4 373 16,213
Net finance (costs) / income 4 (5,957) 12,895
Share of profit / (loss) of associates after tax & munority
interests 12 54 (36)
Profit before tax 9,670 25,407
Income tax expense 7 (7,966) (10,285)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 1,704 15,122
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 26 26,692 2,104
Profit for the year 28,396 17,226
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company 26,034 15,057
Non-controlling interests 24 2,362 2,169
28,396 17,226
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2010

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
Notes £000 £000
Profit for year 28,396 17,226
Other comprehensive income
Fair value gains / (losses) net of tax
- available-for-sale 3 4)
Actuanal gains / (losses) 1n post retirement
benefit schemes 27 5,154 (5,316)
Tax thereon (1,384} 1,488
Currency translation differences 495 (1,462)
Total comprehensive income for the year 32,664 11,932
Attributable to
Owners of the Company 30,302 9,763
Non-controlling interests 24 2,362 2,169
11,932

32,604
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Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2010

2010 2009
Notes £000 £000
Non-current assets
Goodwll 9 16,916 17.337
Other intangible assets 10 4,904 7.634
Praperty, plant and equipment 11 3,282 2,561
Invesiment 1n associates 12 87 49
Held-te-maturity investments 13 1,724 1,593
Trade and other receivables 16 710 -
Denvatve financial mstruments 15 171 3123
Deferred wax assets 21 7.518 12,545
35,312 44,842
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 16 66,675 34,741
Current tax assets 134 454
Denvauve financial instrumenis 15 29 1,395
Available-for-sale investments 14 380 229
Cash and cash equivalents 17 98,564 89,512
165,842 126,331
Current habilities
Borrowings 20 (24,065) {2,540)
Trade and other payables 18 (106,215) (94,252)
Denvative financial instruments 15 (2,168) {5,003)
Current tax habilities (1,738) (981)
Provisions for habilittes and charges 22 (1,691) (1,286)
(135,877) (104,062)
Net current assets 29,965 22,269
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 20 - (27,489}
Denvative financial instruments 15 3,020 (4,748)
Deferred tax liabthties 21 (3,243) (3,688)
Retirrement benefit obligations 27 (13,419) (18 675}
Provisions for habilies and charges 22 (%60) (1.598)
(20,642} (56,198)
44,635 10 913
TOTAL EQUITY
Ordinary shares 23 265 265
Share premium 23 16,952 16,952
Capntal redempuion reserve 23 276 276
Fair value & other reserves 23 65 62
Foreigh currency transkauon reserve 23 3022 2,527
Retained earmings / (accumulated deficit) 23 18,850 (13,741)
Equity atiributable 1o owners of the Company 39,430 6,341
Non-controlhing interests 24 5,205 4,572
Total equity 44,635 10,913

‘. - - "

The Accountng Pohctes and Notes on pages 11 to 60 form an integral pan of these financial sialements
Approved by the Board and signed on 1ts behalf on 29 March 2011 by

e

Phil Rock
Director
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Year ended 31 December 2010

Foreign Retarned Equty
Fair attributable
Capital value currency earnings / to Non-
Share Share redempton & other translanon (accumulated ownersofthe controlling
Notes capital  premmm TESErve  Teserves reserve deficit) Company mnterests Total
£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Balance at 1 January 2010 265 16,952 276 62 2,527 {13,741} 6,341 4,572 10,913
Actuanal losses recogmsed in
post rerement benefit
schemes, net of (ax 27 - - - - - 3770 3770 - 3,770
Fair value gains/(tosses) net
of tax
- avaulable-for-sale - - - 3 - - 3 - 3
Currency translation
differences . - - - 495 . 495 - 495
Net gams / (losses)
recogused directly in equaty B - - 3 495 3,770 4,268 - 4,268
Profit for the year - - - - - 26,034 26,034 2,362 28 396
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 3 495 29,804 30,302 2,362 32,664
Drvidends pad 824 - - - - - - - 2,111 (2,111)
Share based payments - - - - - 539 539 - 539
Purchase of shares by the
ESOT and employec benefit
trust . - - - - 2248 2248 - 2,248
Non-controlling interests
Exchange adjustment 24 - - - - - - - 382 382
Balance at 31 December
2010 265 16,952 276 65 3,022 18,850 39,430 5,205 44,635
Balance at 1 January 2009 265 16,952 276 66 3,989 (25,096) (3,548) 3,753 208
Actuanal losses recogmsed in
post rearement benefit
schemes, net of tax 27 - - - - - (3.828) (3,828) - (3.828)
Fair valve gains/(losses) net
of tax
- available-for-sale - - - G - . ) - (4)
Currency translauon
differences - - - - (1,462) - (1462) - (1,462)
Net gamns / (losses)
recognised directly i equnty - - - (4) (1,462} (3,828) (5,294) - (5,294)
(1-0ss)/Profit for the year - - - . - 15,057 15,057 2 169 17,226
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - (4) (1,462) 11,229 9,763 2,169 11,932
Dividends pard 824 - - - - - - - (2,398) (2,398)
Share based payments - - - - - 540 540 - 540
Purchase of shares by the
ESOT and employee benefit
st - - . - - 1,322 1322 - 1,322
Goodwidl ansing from
purchases of non-controlling
nteresis 9n4 - B - - - (1,736) (1,736) (144) (1.880)
Non-controlling interests
Exchange adjustment 24 - - - - - - - (78) 78)
Purchase of subsidiary with
munonty interest 24 - - - - - - - 1,270 1,270
Balance at 31 December
2009 265 16.952 276 62 2,527 {13,741) 6,341 4,572 10,913
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Year ended 31 December 2010

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
010 2009
Notes £000 £000
Net cash generated by / (used 1n) operating activities 25 9,805 (1,347
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,908) (1,037)
Purchase of intangible assets @m (3,932)
Dusposal of property, plant and equipment 67 25
Acquisition of businesses, (net of cash acquired) (405) (1,413)
Dusposal of business, (net of cash disposed of) 10,777 -
Purchase of held-to-matunty investments (84) -
Purchase of available-for-sale investments (144) (20)
Disposal of available-for-sale investments - 107
Realised (loss) / gain on dernivative financial istruments (3.093) (6,307)
Net cash generated by / (used 1n) investing activities 4,939 (12,577
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest income denived from own funds 83 141
Sale of shares by ESOT and EBT 1,815 1,322
Receipts from new loans 1,750 6,340
Repayment of loans (8,410) (1,990)
Dividend paid to minonty shareholders @11 (2.398)
Net cash (used by) / generated 1n financing activities (6.873) 3,415
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 7.871 (10,509)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 89,512 107,134
Effects of exchange rate changes 1,181 7,113
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 17 98,564

- - . - - -

-10-

89,512
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Accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Cooper Gay (Holdings) Limited (*the CGH Group') have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS’) as adopted by the European Umon (IFRSs as
adopted by the EU), IFRIC interpretations and the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under
IFRS The consohdated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of available-for-sale invesiments and derivative instruments

The separate financial statements of Cooper Gay Holdings Limited (‘the Company’) have been prepared in
accordance with UK GAAP and the Compames Act 2006 A separate income statement for Cooper Gay (Holdings)
Limited has not been presented as permatted by section 408 of the Umited Kingdom Compames Act 2006

Goimng Concern

The CGH Group’s borrowings are due for repayment during 2011  After making enquines, and reviewing detailed
financial projections, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue
to cperate 1n the foreseeable future The Group therefore continues to adopt the going concern basis 1n preparing 1ts
consolidated financial statements

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include those of Cooper Gay (Holdings) Limited, 1ts subsidianes and the CGH
Groups’ 1nterests 1n associates as at 31 December 2010

Subsidiarics

The profit and losses of subsidiaries and the CGH Groups’ interests in the results of associates are included from the
effective date of acquisition unul the effective date of disposal

An entity 1s regarded as a subsidiary 1f the CGH Group has control over its operating and financial pohlicies,
generally determined by the ownership of more than 50% of the voting stock of the investee Enuities over which
the CGH Group has the ability to exercise significant influence, generally determined by ownership of between 20%
and 50% of the voting stock of the investee, are accounted for under the equity method of accounting as associates

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between CGH Group compames are
ehminated Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred Accounting pohlicies of subsidianes have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the CGH Group

The results of discontinued operations are included up to the date of disposal and are shown within profit for the
year from discontinued operations on the income statement

Associates

The CGH Group's share of profit of associates 1s included 1n the financial statements based on the audited accounts
or unaudited management accounts of the companies for periods ended on or before 31 December 2010

Assoclates are all entities over which the CGH Group has significant influence but not contrel, generally
accompanying a shareholding of 20% and 50% of the voting nghts Investments 1n associates are accounted for by
the equity method of accounting and are 1niually recogmsed at cost The CGH Group's share of 1ts associates’ post
acquisttion profits or losses 1s recogmsed n the income statement and its share of post acquisiion movements 1n
reserves 1s recogmsed 1n reserves The cumulative post acquisinon movements are adjusted agamnst the carrying
amount of the investment When the CGH Group’s share of losses 1n an associate equals or exceeds 1ts interest 1n the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recogmuse further losses, unless 1t has
incurred obhigations or made payments on behalf of the associate

-11-
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Business combinations

Business combinations have been accounted for by the purchase method of accounting The cost of an acquisition 1s
measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments 1ssued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the
date of exchange, plus costs directly attrtbutable to the acquisinon [denufiable assets acquired and labilities and
conuingent habiliies assumed 1n a business combination are measured 1mnally at their fair values at the acquistion
date, irrespecuve of the extent of any non-controlling 1nterest The excess of the cost of the acquisition over the fair
value of the CGH Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired 1s recorded as goodwall If the cost of the
acquisition 1s less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recogmsed directly
in the \ncome statement

Foreign currency translation

Iiems 1ncluded 1n the financial statements of each of the CGH Group’s entiies are measured using the currency of
the pnmary economic environment 1n which the entity operates (the “functional currency”)

Transactions 1n currencies other than the functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevaihing at the
date of the transaction Monetary assets and habilities 1n currencies other than the functional currency are translated
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date and the related translation gains and losses are reported
n the consolidated income statement within net finance costs / income Non-monetary assets and habihties carned
at fair value that are denomunated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevarhng when the fair value was
determined Non-monetary assets and liabilites carmed at historical cost that are denominated 1n foreign currencies
are translated at the luistonical exchange rate

The results of foreign entities are translated 1nto Pounds sterling, the Company’s functional and presentational
currency, at the average rate of exchange applicable to the relevant period The assets and habilities of the foreign
entities are translated 1nto Pounds sterling at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date  Goodwill and fair
value adjustments ansing on the agcquisition of an overseas business are treated as assets and habilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate, these foreign exchange differences are shown n the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income

Revenue

The CGH Group generates revenue principally from commissions and fees associated with placing msurance and
FE1NSUrance contracts

Revenue represents brokerage, fees, commussions and other related income Revenue relating to insurance broking
15 recognised at the later of the incepuon date of the coverage or when the placement has been completed and
confirmed Where there 1s an expectation of future servicing requirements an element of income relating to the
policy 1s deferred to cover the associated contractual obligation Fees and other income receivable are recognised in
the period to which they relate or later when they can be measured with reasonable certainty

In certain circumstances, where the revenue cannot be reliably measured at the contract or policy inception date,
commissions and fees are recognised on a pertodic basis when consideration becomes due Commissions and fees
related to return and additional premiums or adjustments are recogmised as they occur Brokerage on mulu-year
policies that are non-cancellable 1s recognised at the date of incepuion of the nsk  Brokerage on mulu-year policies
which can be cancelled or varied at the inception of the nsk 1s apportioned on an annual basis

Other 1ncome receivable 1s recognised in the penod to which 1t relates or, 1f later, when 1t can be measured with
reasonable certainty

Investment income and interest expense

Investment income 1s recognised as earned and includes interest eamed on cash flows ansing from the setlement of
mnsurance broking debtors and creditors Investment income denved from fiduciary funds forms an integral part of
the CGH Group’s operaung activities and 15 included as part of operaung profit Investment income dernived from
own funds 13 included below the operating profit line tn ‘Finance income’

Interest expense mcurred on borrowings 1s recogmsed in the income statements 1n ‘Finance costs” and 1s calculated
using the effective interest rate method The calculation includes all transaction costs, fees and points paid between
parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective rate

-12-
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Operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the income staternent as incurred over the lease term

Non-recurring items (‘exceptional items’)

Income or expenditure 1n relation to events that are unusual due to their size or incidence are credited or charged to
operating profit and classified under the appropnate heading in the income statement Such items are disclosed
separately as ‘exceptional items’ when they are considered matenial, in order that the effects of these items on
operating profit can be fully appreciated

Taxation

Income tax expense compnses current and deferred tax Income tax expense 1s recogmsed n the income statement
except to the extent that it relates to items recogmsed directly 1n equity, 1n which case it 1s recogmsed 1n equity

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substanually
enacted at the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable 1n respect of previous years

Deferred tax 1s recognised 1n respect of all temporary differences between the carrying value of assets and habilities
for reporting purposes and the corresponding bases used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax is
calculated at the rate of tax expected to apply when the hability 1s settled or the asset 1s realised A deferred tax asset
1s only recogmsed to the extent that 1t 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
will be utihsed Deferred tax habilities are only offset against deferred tax assets within the same taxable entity or
qualifying local tax group where there 15 both the legal nght and the intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the
asset and settle the hiability simultaneously Deferred tax balances are not discounted

Share based payments

The share option programme allows CGH Group employees to acquire shares of the ulumate parent company, these
awards are granted by the ultimate parent The fair value of options granted 1s recogmsed as an employee expense
with a corresponding increase n equity The fair value 1s measured at the grant date and spread over the peniod
during which the employees become unconditronally entitled to the opuions The fair value of the options granted 1s
measured usig an option valuation model, taking 1nto account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted The amount recogmsed as an expense 1s adjusted to reflect the actual number of share opuons that
vest except where forfeiture 1s due only to share prices not achieving the threshold for vesting

In accordance with the Articles of Association, employee shareholders of the CGSC Group are subject to certain
restricions over the sale of their shares The existence of these restrictions results in the shares being captured by
IFRS 2 "Share based payments" CGSC has a choice of whether to acquire such shares from employees who choose
to sell them or leave the CGH Group CGSC 1s under no present obligation to do so erther through the relevant rules
of the Articles or as a result of stated policy or past practice Accordingly these shares are accounted for as equity
settled Where these shares are acquired by employees at a value below the unrestnicted fair market value, the
difference 1s recogmsed as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase to equity, and spread over the
vesting penod

Employee share ownership trust (‘ESOT’) and employee benefit trust (‘EBT’)

In 1997 the Company established an employee share ownership trust The trustee 15 Cooper Gay (Employee Trust)
(Jersey) Limited, a subsidiary, and its assets are held separately from those of the CGH Group

In 2009 the Company established The Cooper Gay (Holdings) Limited Employee Benefit Trust, the trustees of
which jointly own shares 1n the Company together with a small number of employees

Whalst the trustees have a fiduciary duty to act 1n the best interests of the beneficianes of the trust, in practice the
ultmate parent company’s advice as to how the assets are used for the benefit of employees 1s generally accepted
and the Company bears the major risks and rewards of the assets held within the trust

The accounts of the trusts have been incorporated 1n the consohidated financial statements as subsidianes

Investments 1n CGSC’s shares are held at cost and are included as a deduction from shareholders’ equity Purchases,
sales and transfers of these shares are disclosed as changes in shareholders’ equity
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Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the CGH Group’s share of the net
identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary / associate at the date of acquisition

For acquisitions prior to 1 January 1998, any goodwill ansing has been wntten off to reserves on consolidation
Following the adoption of IFRS, this goodwill will remain written off to reserves and no adjustment will be made on
subsequent disposal For acquisiions completed on or afier | January 1998 and before 1 January 2007, goodwill 1s
stated on the balance sheet at 11s amortised net book value For acquisiions made after 1 January 2007, goodwall s
stated on the balance sheet at historic cost to the extent that 1t does not anse on the acqmsitton of non-controlling
interests Goodwill in relation to the acquisition of non-controlling interests 1s wntten off to reserves

Goodwill 15 tested annually for impairment and carned at cost less accumulated imparrment losses  Goodwill 1s
allocated to cash-generating umits for the purposes of impairment testing Cash-generating un:ts represent the lowest
level of geographical and business umt combinations that the CGH Group uses for internal reporting purposes

The gain or loss on disposal of an entity includes the carrying amount of any goodwill relating to the entity sold
Transactions and non-controlling interests

The CGH Group applies a policy of treating transactions with the owners of the non-controlling interests as
transactions with parties external to the CGH Group Disposals to mimonty interests result tn gams and losses for the
Group that are recorded 1n the income statement Purchases from non-controlling interests result 1n goodwill, being
the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary The goodwill ansing from purchases of non-controlhng interests are wntten off to retained earnings

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets compnse computer software, software development costs and the contractual customer
relatonships to acquire the benefit of client contracts, intellectual property, information and business records The
acquisiion of the contractual customer relationships provide the CGH Group the exclusive nght to represent and
hold itself out as carrying on the busimness 1n succession and the night to act as broker to existing clients in respect of
renewal of existing msurance and remsurance policies and contracts and new 1nsurance and reinsurance policies and
contracts and to provide other insurance and reinsurance related services to existung clients

Acquired software licences are capitalised on the basis of costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software Costs associated with developing or maintaiming computer software programmes are recogmsed as
expenses as mcurred Software costs recognised as assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated
useful lives (five years)

Contractual customer relatuonships are amortised to the income statement over the lhife of the contract or their
estimated useful hfe The amorusauon charge for the year 1s included 1n the income statement under ‘Depreciation,
amortisation and impairment charges’ The contractual customer relauonships current maximum estimated useful
Iife 1s five years

Impairment of assets

Asseis that have an indefinite useful life, such as goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
umpairment  Assets subject 10 amortisation are reviewed for impairment 1f events or changes 1 circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable

To the extent that the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount, which 1s the higher of net realisable value
and value 1n use, the asset 15 wntten down to its recoverable amount Net realisable value 1s the estimated amount at
which an asset can be disposed of, less any direct selling costs  Value 10 use 1s the esumate of the discounted future
cash flows generated from the asset’s continued use, 1acluding those resulting from its ulumate disposal For the
purposes of assessing value 1n use, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment assets are stated at cost less accumulated annual depreciaton Depreciation is
calculated so as to wnte off the cost of such assets on a straight-line basis over their esumated useful lives at the
following annual rates

Leasehold premises — over the term of the lease
Fixtures and fittings — 10% - 20% per annum
Computers — 33% per annum

Motor vehicles — 25% per annum

Financial assets

The CGH Group classifies its financial assets as loans and receivables, held-to-matunty investments, available-for-
sale rnvestments and denivative financial instruments (see below) The classification depends upon the purpose for
whuch the financial assets were acquired Management determnes the classification of its financial assets at initial
recogmiion  Financial assets are derecognised when the nights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the CGH Group has transferred substantially all nsks and rewards of
ownership

Loans and receivables are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted n
an active market They are included 1n current assets, except for matunties greater than 12 months after the balance
sheet date Loans and recervables are recogmsed at cost, being the fair value of the consideration together with any
associated 1ssue costs

Held-to-matunty mvestments are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determined payments and fixed
matunities that the CGH Group’s management has posiive intention and abihity to hold to matunty Held-to-
maturity mnvestments are subsequently carried at amortised cost  If the CGH Group were to sell a significant amount
of held-to-matunty assets, the entire category would be reclassified as available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are categonsed according to their nature into one of two categories

(1)  Fixed deposits held at fair value and classified between current and non-current assets according to maturity
date Impairment charges on available-for-sale investments are recogmsed in the income statement, and

(1) Other nvestments, which include secunities and other investments held for an indefinite period of time, which
may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes 1n 1interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carned at fair value with gains and losses ansing from changes
1n the fair value recognised directly in equity unul the financial asset 1s derecogmsed or impaired

Interest on deposits and interest-bearing investments 1s credited to the income statement as 1t 15 earned using the
effective interest rate method

Insurance broking assets and habilities

Insurance brokers act as agents in placing the insurable nsks of their clients with insurers and, as such, are not liable
as principals for amounts ansing from such transactions Accordingly, receivables ansing from insurance broking
transactions are not included as an asset of the CGH Group Other than the receivable for fees and commissions
earned on a transaction, no recogmtion of the msurance transaction occurs unul the CGH Group receives cash 1n
respect of premiums or claims, at which time a corresponding hability 1s established in favour of the insurer or the
chient In certarn circumstances, the CGH Group advances premiums, refunds or claims to insurance underwriters or
chients prior to collecuon These advances are reflected 1n the balance sheet as part of trade receivables

Fiduciary cash anising from insurance broking transactions 1s included within cash and cash equivalents
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Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recogmsed 1mually at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less impairment
provision An mmpairment provision 18 created when there 15 evidence that the CGH Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due Sigmficant financial difficulties of the debtor, dispute, default or delinquency 1n payments
are considered indicators that the receivable 15 impaired

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenis include cash 1n hand, current account balances, bank deposits and other short-term hiquid
investments with matunty dates of ninety (90) days or less at the date of purchase Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet

Trade payables

Trade payables are initially recognised at fair value, which usually represents their cost, and subsequently measured
at amortised cost

Borrowings

Borrowings are imtially recogmsed at fair value, which usually represents their cost, less the transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the 1ssue of the financtal hability Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost
using the effective mnterest rate method

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the CGH Group has an unconditional night to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date

Dernvative financial instruments

The CGH Group uses denvative financial instruments to manage exposure to foreign exchange and nterest rate
nsks

Denvative financial instruments include foreign exchange contracts, interest rate futures, currency and interest rate
swaps, currency and interest rate options and other financial instruments that denive their value mainly from
underlying interest rates and foreign exchange rates Denvative financial instruments are initially recogmsed at fair
value, which usually represents their cost, on the date a derivative contract 1s entered nto

Movements 1n fair value are recognised within the income statement as they occur

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and hiabilites are offset and the net amount reported 1n the consolidated balance sheet only when
there 1s a legally enforceable nght to offset the recognised amounts and there 18 an intention to settle on a net bass,
or to realise the asset and settle the hability simultaneously

Pension obligations

The CGH Group operates defined benefit pension schemes The pension hability recogmsed 1n the balance sheet 15
the present value of the scheme’s habihiies tess the fair value of the schemes” assets

The pension cost for the scheme 1s analysed between current service cost, past service cost and net return on pension
scheme Current service cost 1s the actuanally calculated present value of the benefits earned by the active
employees 1n each penod  Past service costs, relaung to employee service in prior penods ansing in the current
penod as a result of the mtroduction of, or improvement 10, reurement benefits, are recognised 1n the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the pertod 1in which the increase 1n benefits vest

Net expected return on the pension asset comprises the expected return on the pension scheme assets less interest on
scheme habihties

The actuanal gains and losses which arise from a valuanon and from updating the latest actuarial valuation to reflect
conditions at the balance sheet date are taken 10 the consohdated statement of comprehensive income for the period
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Pension obligations (continued)
The attnbutable deferred taxauon is shown separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

The CGH Group also operates a defined contribution pension scheme Contributions made to the scheme 1n the year
are charged to the income statement

Provisions for liabilities and charges

A provision 1s recogmsed when there 1s a present obligation, whether legal or constructive, as a result of a past event
for which 1t 1s probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
esumate can be made of the amount of the obligation

Dividends

Dividends are recogmsed as a hability 1n the period 1n which the dividends are approved by the shareholders for the
final dividend or when paid for the interim dividend

Financral and capital risk management

The CGH Group’s exposure to financial risks and its financial and capital management policies are detailed in the
Report of the Directors on pages 2to 5

Critical accounting eshmates and judgements

Preparation of the financial statements requires certain estimates and assumptions to be made concerning future
events that may affect the reported amounts 1n the financial statements and accompanying notes Estimates and
Judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectauons of future events that are believed to be reasonable Consequently, the actual results can differ from
these estimates Key estimates made by management are as follows

1) Intangible assets
The contractual customer relanonships acquired are imtially recognised at cost, which represents their imual fair
value, and are amortised over the estimated useful lives of the assets purchased Management determunes the
estuimated useful hives and related amortisation charges at acquisiion The estimated useful hives are reviewed
annually and the amortisation charge 1s revised where useful lives are subsequently found to be different to
those previously estimated

i) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment 1s carmied at ustonical cost less depreciation, calculated to wnite off the costs of
such assets over their estimated useful lives Management determines the estumated useful hives and related
depreciation charges at acquisitton The estimated usefu!l hfe 1s reviewed annually and the depreciation charge
1s revised where useful lives are subsequently found to be different to those previously estimated

) Impairment

The CGH Group tests goodwill annually for impairment m accordance with the accounting policy for
“Impairment of assets” described above The recoverable amounts of cash-generating umits have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations These calculations are based on management assumptions and
required the use of estimates This determunation requires sigmficant judgment In making this judgment, the
Group evaluates the duration and extent to which fair value of an investment 1s less than 1its cost and the
financial health of and near term business outlook for the investment, including factors such as industry and
sector performance. changes n regional economies and operational and financing cash flows

w) Taxanon
The CGH Group 1s subject to income taxes in the vanous junisdictions in which 1t operates  Significant
Judgement 15 required mm determining the provision for income taxes There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination 1s uncertamn during the ordimary course of business Where
the final tax outcome of these matters 1s different from the amounts that were 1tially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period 1 which such determination 1s made
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

v} Fair value of financial assets
The fair value of financial assets that are not traded in an active market 1s determuned by reference to recent
comparable transactions, when applicable  'When no such companson transactions exist, the financial asset 1s
reviewed annually for impairment 1n accordance with the accounting policy “Impairment of assets” described
above The CGH Group uses its judgement and makes assumptions that are mainly based on existing market
condiuons to determine whether the carrying value of the asset should be wntten down

vi) Pension obligations
Defined benefit pension schemes
The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuanal
basis using a number of assumptions The assumpuons used 1n determining the net cost (income) for pensions
include the expected long-term rate of return on the relevant plans’ assets, mortahity assumptions and the
discount rate Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of pension obligations

The expected return on plan assets assumption 1s determined on a umform basis, taking mto consideration
long-term histoncal returns, asset allocation and future esumates of long-term 1nvestment returns  The Group
determines the appropniate discount rate at the end of each year This 1s the interest rate that should be used to
determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expecied to be required to settle the pension
obligations In determiming the appropnate discount rate, the CGH Group considers the interest rates of high
quality corporate bonds that are denominated 1n the currency 1n which the benefits will be paid, and that have
terms to matunty approximating the terms of the related pension liability Other key assumpuons for pension
obligations are based 1n part on current market conditions

vit) Errors and onussions habiinies
In the ordnary course of the CGH Group’s business 1t can be subject to claims for errors and omissions made 1n
conmection with 1ts broking activiies A balance sheet provision 1s established in respect of such claims when 1t
15 probable that the Liability has been wncurred and the amount of the liability can be reasonably esumated The
CGH Group analyses 1ts liigauon exposures based on available nformation, mcluding external legal
consultation where appropnate, to assess its potential hability

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations effective on or after 1 January 2010

a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

IFRS 3 (revised), “Busmess Combinations”, and consequential amendments to IAS 27 “Consolidated and separate
financial statements”, IAS 28, “Investments 1n Associates”, and IAS 31, “Interests 11 jomnt ventures”, are effective
prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date 1s on or after the beginming of the first annual
reporting pertod beginning on or after 1 July 2009

The revised standard continues to apply the acquisition method to business combinations but with some sigmficant
changes compared with IFRS 3 For example, all payments to purchase a business are recorded at fair value at the
acquisiion date, with contingent payments classified as debt subsequently re-measured through the statement of
comprehensive income There i1s a choice on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis to measure the non-conirolling
nterest 1n the acquiree either at fair value or the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
assets All acquisition-related costs are expensed

IFRS 5 (amendment), “Non-current assets held for sale and disconunued operauons” The amendment clanfies that
IFRS 5 specifies the disclosure required 1n respect of non-current assets {or disposal groups) classified as held for
sale or discontinued operations It also clanfies that the general requirements of 1AS 1 sull apply, i particular
paragraph 15 (to achieve a fair presentation) and paragraph 125 (sources of estimation and uncertainty) of 1AS 1

IAS 36 (amendment), “Impairment of assets”, effective 1 January 2010 The amendment clanfies that the largest
cash-generating-unit (or group of units) to which goodwill should be allocated for the purposes of impairment
lesting 15 an operating segment as defined by paragraph 5 of IFRS 8 “Operaung segments” (that 1s, before the
aggregation of segments with similar economic characternstics)
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b) New and amended standards, and interpretations mandatory for the first time for the financial period beginning
I January 2010 but not currently relevant to the group (although they may affect the accounting for future
transactions)

IAS 27 (revised) “Consohdated and separate financial statements”™ requires the effect of all transacthons with non-
controlling 1nterests to be recorded in equity 1f there 1s no change 1n control and these transactions will no longer
result 1n goodwill or gains and losses The standard also specifies the accounting when control 1s lost Any
remaining interest 1n equity 1s re-measured to fair value, and a gan or loss 1s recogmsed 1n the 1ncome statement
IAS 27 (revised) has had no impact on the current penod, as none of the non-controlling mterests have a deficit
balance, there have been no transactions whereby an interest in an entity 1s retained after the loss of control of that
entity, and there have been no transactions with non-controlling interests

IFRIC 9, “Reassessment of embedded derivatives” and IAS 39, “Financial instruments Recogmition and
measurement”, effective 1 July 2009 This amendment to IFRIC 9 requires an entity to assess whether an embedded
denvauve should be separated from a host contract when the entity reclassifies a hybrid financial asset out of the
“fair value through mcome statement” category This assessment 15 to be made based on circumstances that existed
on the later of the date the entity first became a party to the contract and the date of any contract amendments that
significantly change the cash flows of the contract If the enuty 1s unable to make this assessment, the hybnd
instrument must remain classified as at fair value through 1income statement 1n its entirety

IFRIC 16, “Hedges of a net investment 1n a foreign operation” effective | July 2009 This amendment states that, 1n
a hedge of a net investment 1n a foreign operation, quahfying hedge instruments may be held by any entity or
entities within the Group, including the foreign operauon uself, as long as the designation, documentation and
effeciveness requirements of 1AS 39 that relates to a net investment hedge are satisfied In particular, the group
should clearly document sts hedging strategy because of the possibihity of different designations at different levels of
the group

IAS 38 (amendment), “Intangible assets”, effective 1 January 2010 The amendment clarifies gwmdance
measuring the fair value of an intangible asset acquired 1n a business combination and permits the grouping of
intangible assets as a single asset 1f each asset has sitmilar useful economic lives

IAS 1 (amendment), “Presentation of financial statements™ The amendment clanfies that the potental settlement of
a habihity by the 1ssue of equity 1s not relevant to 1ts classification as a current or non current By amending the
defimuon of current liability, the amendment permuts a liability to be classified as non-current (provided that the
entity has an unconditional night to defer settlement by transfer of cash or other assets for at least 12 months after the
accounung period) notwithstanding the fact that the entity could be required by the counterparty to settle 1n shares at
any time

IFRS 2 (amendments), “Group cash-settled share-based payment transacuons”, effective from 1 January 2010 In
addition to incorporating IFRIC 8, “Scope of IFRS 27, and [FRIC 11, “IFRS 2 - Group and treasury share
transactions”, the amendments expand on the gwidance m IFRIC 11 to address the classification of group
arrangements that were not covered by that interpretation

Standards, amendments to pubhshed standards and interpretations early adopted by the CGH Group
In 2010, the CGH Group did not early adopt any new, revised or amended standards

Future accounting standards

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations were 1n 1ssue
but not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the CGH Group

1) IFRS 9, “Financial instruments™ IFRS 9 addresses classificauon and measurement of financial assets and
1s available for early adoption immediately IFRS 9 replaces the muluple classificaion and measurement
models 1n JAS 39 with a single model that has only two classification categories amortised cost and fair
value IFRS 9 1s effecuve for annual periods beginmng on or after | January 2013 When the IFRS
becomes effective, 1t 1s expected to have an impact of the classification of financial assets

11) IAS 24 (revised), “Related party disclosures”, 1ssued in November 2009 It supersedes LAS 24, “Related
party disclosures”, 1ssued 1 2003 IAS 24 (revised) 1s mandatory for perods beginmng on or after |
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January 2011 Earher application, 1n whole or 1n part, 1s permitted When the revised standard 1s applied,
the CGH Group will need to disclose any transactions between 1ts subsidianes and associates

“Classificanon of rights 1ssues™ (amendment to 1AS 32), 1ssued in October 2009 The amendment applies
to annual penods beginning on or after 1 February 2010 Earher apphcation 1s permitted The amendment
addresses the accounting for rights 15sues 1n a currency other than the functional currency of the 1ssuer
Provided certain conditions are met, such nights 1ssues are now classified as equity regardless of the
currency 1n which the exercise price 1s denominated Previously, these 1ssues would have been accounted
for as a denivative liability

IFRIC 19, “Extingmishing financial liabilities with equity instruments”, effective 1 July 2010 The
nterpretation clarifies the accounung by an entity when the terms of a financial hability are renegotiated
and result in the entity 1ssuing equity instruments to a creditor of the entity to extingwsh all or part of the
financial liabihity (debt for equity swap) It requires a gain or loss to be recogmsed i income statement,
which 1s measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair value
of the equity instruments 1ssued If the far value of the equity instruments 1ssued cannot be rehably
measured, the equity instruments should be measured to reflect the fair value of the financial lability
extingmished The group will apply the interpretation from 1 January 2011, subject to endorsement by the
EU It 1s not expected to have any impact on the group or the parent entity’s financial statements

“Prepayments of a mimmum funding requirement” (amendments to IFRIC 14) The amendments correct an
unintended consequence of IFRIC 14, ‘IAS 19 — The hmit on a defined benefit asset, mimumum funding
requirements and their mnteraction” Without the amendments, entities are not permitted to recognise as an
asset some voluntary prepayments for mimimum funding contributions This was not intended when IFRIC
14 was 1ssued, and the amendments correct this The amendments are effective for annual penods
beginming 1 Januwary 2011 Earher applhcaton 1s permutied The amendments should be apphed
retrospectively to the earliest comparative penod presented The CGH Group will apply these amendments
for the financial reporting period commencing on 1 January 2011 It 1s not expected to have any impact on
the group or the parent entity’s financial statements
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Notes to the financial statements
1 Commussion and fees

Brokerage and commussions by source from conttnuing operations are

as follows Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2010 2009

£000 £000

Europe 40,488 40,075
North Amenca 5,759 7,039
Canbbean 5,167 4,949
Latin Amenca 36,731 27,291
Australasia 6,712 5,339
Other 1,958 3,118
Commussion and fees 96,815 87.811

+

Turmnover and profit before tax relate wholly to nsurance and remnsurance broking activity which 1 the
opimion of the directors 1s carried out 1n one global insurance and remsurance market

IFRS 8 'Operatung Segments” has not been adopted as the CGH Group does not have debt or equity
nstruments traded 1n a pubhic market nor 1s 1n the process of filing the consolidated financal statements
with a securities commussion or other regulatory orgamsation for the purpese of issuing any class of
financial instruments 1n a public market
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2 Operating profit
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
Continming operations £'000 £000
Other operating income
The following 'other operating income’ has been credited 1in arnving at operaung
profit
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 11
Cther income 1,348 771
Total other operating income 1,348 782
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges
Amornsation of intangible assets
- software and development costs 178 109
- books of business 2,040 2,097
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
- owned assets 960 781
Impairment charges
- other intangible assets 292 158
Total depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges 3,470 3,145
Other operating costs
The following operating costs have been charged 1n
amving at operating profit
Operating lease rentals payable
land & buildings 2,471 2,185
furmture, equipment & motor vehicles 220 237
computer equipment & software 44 31
- sub-lease receipts
land & buildings (42) (32)
Non-recurring items / exceptional items:
Exceptional costs of outsourcing - 1,188 *
Excepticnal (tncome) / costs relating to certain commercial habihities - 417 v
Total exceptional items

a

Exceptional costs of outsourcang certaun back office functions
b
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Notes to the financial statements

3 Investment Income
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
Continming operations £000 £'000
Interest receivable — fiduciary funds 422 656

Interest recervable includes only interest denved from fiduciary funds Interest receivable from own funds 1s
included in ‘Finance income’

4 Net Finance (Cost) / Income
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
Continuing operations £000 £000
Interest receivable - own funds 83 141
Investment income from fixed asset investments - 3
Interest receivable from parent company 199 -
Interest recervable from fellow CGSC Group company 72 -
Interest expense
- bank and other borrowings (1,092) (1,416)
Pension financing
- expected return on post employment scheme assets 1,725 1,436
- nterest on post employment scheme liabilities (2.576) (2,314)
Net pension financing costs (851) (878)
Fair value (losses) / gains on financial 1nstruments
- denvauve financial instruments (2,788) 14,653
(2,788) 14,653
Foreign exchange differences
Foreign exchange (losses) / gains on loans payable (1,121) 2,116
Foreign exchange (losses) / gains — other monetary items (251) (1,510)
(1,372) 606
Amortisation of borrowing costs (227 (212)
Other finance income /(costs) 19 2)
Net finance (costs) / income (5,957 12,895
Analysed as
Finance costs (6,330) (4,018)
Finance mcome 373 16,913
Net finance (costs) / income (5,957) 12,895
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Notes to the financial statements

5 Employee and Directors’ information
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
Continuing operations £'000 £000
a) Salanes and associated expenses
Wages and salanes 44,243 36,208
Social Secunty costs 4,106 3,728
Pension costs 2,630 2,535
Share based payments 450 422

51.429 42,893

b) Analysis of employees
Average number of persons, including Executive Directors, employed by the CGH Group duning the year

Number of Number of

people people
By activity
Broking and Insurance 399 444
Management and admunistration 202 217
601 661

Included within the above analysis for 2009 are 76 employees employed by discontinued operations

¢) Key management compensation £'000 £'000
Salanes and short term employee benefits 2,012 1,408
Post employment benefits 62 40
Share based payments 359 376

2,433 1,824

Highest paid Director
Total amount of emoluments 1,074 584

Defined benefit scheme

Accrued pension at end of year 58 54
’ ’ ) o 20140 2009
Number of directors accruing benefits 1n a defined benefit scheme 2 2
Number of directors exercising share options 3 -
Aggregate number of share options exercised by management 220,621 -

Share based payment schemes

Dunng 2010, £450,000 (2009 £422,000) was debited to the profit & loss account in respect of share-based
payments On 9 July 2010, all cutstanding options 1n the Company shares were coaverted into options 1n shares of
the ulumate parent company, Cooper Gay Sweu & Crawford Limited (“CGSC") following the acquisition of the
Company This has been treated as 3 modification and the fair values remain unchanged accordingly

Calculation of fair values

Fair values of share opuions/awards, measured at the date of gramt of the option/award, are calculated using a
binomal latice methodology The model 1s based on the standard “binomial™ option pricing model but takes into
account particular features which are common to employee share options The expected hfe of options depends on
the behaviour of option holders, which 1s mncorporated into the option model consistent with historic observable
data The fair values calculated are inherently subjecuve and uncertain due to the assumptions made and the
Limitations of the model used
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5 Employees and Directors’ information (continued)

The significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value of the options granted in 2010 are as follows

LTIP
2010
Risk free interest rate (%) 218
Expected life (years) 10 00
Expected volatulity (%) 1500

The nisk-free rate was determined using the yield available on similarly dated zero coupon UK governments bonds
at the ume of the option grants, using historical information taken from the records of the Bank of England
Expected life 1s not a single input parameter but a functhion of vartous behavioural assumptions Expected volatility
1s estimated by considering both histonc average share price volatihty and implied volaulity of similar histed entities,
for which share price or option price informatton was available

All opuions granted under the share option schemes are conditional upon the employee remamning 1n the Group’s
employment during the vesting period of the option

Group Share Option Plan

The Group Share Option Plan was a long-term 1incentive plan available to certain employees during 2007 The aim
of the plan was to align the nterest of certain employees to the creation of sharcholder value Options were granted
at market value and are normally exercisable between four years and 7 months, and five years and 1 month after the
date of grant, subject to vesting conditions

2010 2009
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price exercise prn:e
Number £ Number £
Qutstanding at 1 January 637,500 130 687,500 130
Granted - - - -
Lapsed (25,000) - {50,000) -
Exercised - _ @024 - _ - -
At 9 July 2010 412,266 130
Modification to CGSC 1,649,071 -
options o o L _
CGSC options at @ July 2,061,337 026
2010
Lapsed (126204} st
Cutstanding at 31 1,935,133 026 637,500 130
December

As part of the formation of the new CGSC Group, the outstanding CGH options at 9 July 2010 were converted 1nto
CGSC opuons at the ratio of 1 5 on the basis that the CGH shareholders exchanged 1 CGH share for 5 CGSC
shares
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5 Employees and Directors’ information (continued)

Group Share Allocation Scheme

The Group Share Allocation Scheme was a long-term 1ncentive plan available to certain employees dunng 2009
The aim of the plan was o align the nterest of certain employees to the creatton of shareholder value Shares were
granted at market value and are normally exercisable at two years and 5 months, subject to vesting conditions
Dunng 2009 the scheme was cancelled for all UK employees and replaced by the Jomnt Equity Scheme In
accordance with IFRS2 the full fair value of the scheme for UK employees was charged to the inceme statement
The scheme remains in place for overseas employees

2010 2009

Waeighted averape
exercise price

Number £
Outstanding at 1 January 87,950 175 - -
Granted - - 2,357,675 175
Cangcelled - - (2,269,725) 175
Modification to CGSC 351,800 -
gpwons .
CGSC options at & July
2010
Ea_r_lcelled

Outstanding at 31 439,750 035 87,950 J 175
December _

439,750

As part of the formation of the new CGSC Group, the outstanding CGH options at 9 July 2010 were converted 1into
CGSC opuons at the ratio of 1 5 on the basis that the CGH shareholders exchanged 1 CGH share for 5 CGSC
shares

Joint Ownership Equity Scheme

The Joint Ownership Equity Scheme (JOE) was available to certain employees during 2009 The aim of the plan
was to ahign the interest of certain employees to the creation of shareholder value Some shares granted under the
JOE scheme are subject to performance conditions and some are not  Shares were granted at market value and are
normally exercisable at four years (performance conditions) and five years (no performance conditions), subject to
vesting conditions

2010 2010
No performance conditions Performance conditrons
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price exercise price
Number £ Number £
Outstanding at 1 January 776,400 225 2,269,725 225
Granted - - - -
Exercised (171,585) - - -
At 9 July 2010 604,815 225 2,269,725 225
Modification to CGSC 2,419.260 - 9,078,900 -
options - .. .
CGSC options at 9 July 3,024,075 045 11,348,625 045
2010
pancelled - - - -
QOutstanding at 31 3.024,075 045 11,348,625 045
’December
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5 Employees and Directors’ information (continued)
2009 2009
No performance conditions Performance conditions
Weighted average Weighted average
exer¢ise price exercise price
Number £ Number £
Outstanding at 1 January - - - -
Qrantgd 4 ?7634:00 i 2125 77%,%6_9,725 ? g§
Outstanding at 31 December 776,400 225 2,269,725 225

As part of the formation of the new CGSC Group, the outstanding CGH options at 9 July 2010 were converted 1nto
CGSC options at the rano of 1 5 on the basis that the CGH shareholders exchanged 1 CGH share for 5 CGSC

shares

Long Term Incentive Plan

The Long Term Incentive Plans (LTIPs) were available to certain employees during 2010 The aim of the plans was
to align the interest of certain employees to the creation of shareholder value Shares were granted at market value
and are normally exercisable at three years and | month and two years and 3 months and one year and 3 months
from grant respecuvely These are subject to vesting conditions associated with the CGH Group’s performance over

defined 3 vear peniods ending 2010, 2011 and 2012

LTIP 2010 LTIP 2009 LTIP 2008 LTIP 2007
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average average
exercise exercise exercise exercise
price price price price
Number £ Number £ Number £ Number £
Ouistanding at 1 - - 201,026 225 161,964 175 115,131 175
January
Allowance for - . - - (68,563) B . -
lapses
Lapsed - - - - - - (50,181) -
Exercised B B - - (64,950 175
AL 9 July 2010 - - 201,026 225 93,401 175 - -
Modificauon to - B 804 104 - 373,604 - - -
CG§C opuons i )
CGSC opuons at - - 1,005,130 045 467,005 035 - -
9 July 2010
Granted 950,550 061 - - - - - -
Quitstanding at 950,550 06l 1,005,130 045 467,005 035 - -
31 December

—_— e —

The table above reflects the number of LTIPs used 1n denving the share based payment charge for the year The

number of options which vest will depend upon group performance

As part of the formation of the new CGSC Group, the outstanding CGH options at 9 July 2010 were converted 1nto
CGSC options at the rato of 15 on the basis that the CGH shareholders exchanged 1 CGH share for 5 CGSC

shares

The fair value of options granted 1n the year as at the date of grant was £579.836
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6 Services provided by the Group’s auditor and network firms

During the year, the CGH Group obtained the following services from the Group's auditor at the costs detailed
betow

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2010 2009

£:000 £'000
Fees payable to the Group's auditor for the audit of the Company 35 105
Fees payable to the Group's auditor and 1its associates for other services
The audit of the Group's subsidianies, pursuant to legislation 281 297
The audit of a Group subsidiary client money, pursuant to the FSA 10 10
Tax services 17 121
All other services - 225

343 758
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Year

ended 31 December 2010

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
Continuing operations £000 £000
Current tax expense/(credit):
United Kingdom:
Corporaticn tax on profits for the year 191 38
(Over) / under provided n prior years 5) 89
186 127
Forewgn tax:
Current tax on income for the year 4,952 4,592
(Over)/Under provided in prior years (255) 16
4,697 4,608
Total current tax 4,883 4,735
Deferred tax expense:
Omnginauon and reversal of temporary differences 657 5,933
Benefit of tax losses recognised 1,808 397
Pnior year adjustments 618 (780)
Total deferred tax expense 3.083 5,550
Total income tax expense 7,966 10,285

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretsical amount that would anse using the tax

rate of the home country of the Company as follows

Profit before tax-

Tax calculated at UK Corporation Tax of 28% (2009 28%)

Non-deductible expenses*
Share based payments
Other adjustments to taxable profit

Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior periods
Effect of UK and non-UK tax rate differences

Unrecogmsed deferred tax adjustments

Total income tax expense

9.670 25 407

2,708 7114
1,167 424
90 122

i @

358 (675)
327 865
3316 2.437
7,966 10,285

*The non-deductible expenses for 2010 and previous periods pnncipally relate to non-deductible
entertainment expenses and non-eligible depreciation, ntangibles amortisauon and foreign exchange

differences on intangibles
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8

Dividends

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Interim dividend 1n respect of 2010 of ml p per share (2009 mil p per share) - -
No final dividend for 2010 1s proposed by the Board (2009 mil p)
9 Goodwill
Gross Impairment Net carrying
Amount Losses Amount
£000 £'000 £'000
As at 31 December 2010
Opening net book amount 17,337 - 17,337
Exchange differences 20 - 421)
Closing net book amount 16,916 - 16,916
As at 31 December 2009
Opemng net book amount 16,802 - 16,802
Exchange differences (730) - (730)
Acquisitions 3,001 - 3,001
Goodwill ansing from purchases of non-controlling interests
written off to retained earnings (1,736) - (1,736)
Closing net book amount 17,337 - 17,337

—_———
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9 Goodwill (continued)
Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill 15 allocated to the CGH Group’s cash generatng umts (CGUs) identfied according to country of
operaticn A summary of the goodwill allocation 15 presented below

Total

£000s
Geographical region
Europe 14,126
Latn Amenca 2,790
As at 31 December 2010 16,916
Europe 14,692
Latin America 2,645
As at 31 December 2009 17,337

The recoverable amount of a CGU 1s determined based on value 1n use calculations These calculations use
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a 3 year period Cash
flows beyond the three year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:

At 31 December 2010

Growth Discount
Rate % Rate %
Geographical region:
Europe 2 10
Latin Amenica 5 15

The key assumptions used in value-in-use calculations were:

The budgeted trading profit growth management determines budgeted trading profit based on past experience
and 1ts expectations for the market development The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant geographical region and country of operation

-31-




Notes to the financaial statements

Cooper Gay (Holdings) Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2010

10 Other intangible assets
Contractual
customer Software
relationships  Computer  development
acqured software costs Total
£7000 £2000 £000 £'000

Cost
At 1 January 2010 10,451 1,015 604 12,070
Exchange differences 3 (8) - (n
Additions - 242 29 271
Companies disposed - (186) (385) (571)
Adjustments (46) - - (46)
At 31 December 2010 10,402 1,063 248 11,713
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2010 3,617 632 187 4,436
Amortisation charge 2,020 187 28 2,235
Impairment 202 - - 292
Companies disposed - (145) - (145)
Exchange differences - (1) 2 (9}
At 31 December 2010 5,929 663 217 6,809
Net book amount at 31 December 2010 4,473 400 31 4904
Cost _ -
At 1 January 2009 10,267 702 453 11,422
Exchange differences - €)) 16 9
Additions 304 320 135 759
Adjustments (120) - - (120)
At 31 December 2009 10,451 1,015 604 12,0670
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2009 1,362 537 160 2,059
Amortisation charge 2,097 100 30 2,227
Impatrment 158 - - 158
Exchange differences - (3) 3 (8
At 31 December 2009 3,617 632 187 4,436
Net book amount at 31 December 2009 6,834
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11 Property, plant and equipment
Furniture
Leasehold Computer Equipment Motor

improvements  Equipment & other  velmcles Total
Cost £000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
At | January 2010 2,302 2,257 3,181 645 8,385
Exchange differences 15 36 50 49 150
Additions 851 501 414 142 1,908
Compames disposed (149) (393) (726) - {1,268)
Disposals (40) 48) (D {125) (224)
At 31 December 2010 2,979 2.353 2,908 711 8,951
Accumulated depreciation ‘
At 1 January 2010 1,688 1,660 2,230 246 5.824 !
Exchange differences 1)) 21 30 17 67 ‘
Charge for year 297 391 203 113 1,004
Compames disposed (112) (341) (614) - (1,067)
Dnsposals (40) (48) (6) (65) (159)
At 31 December 2010 1,832 1,683 1,843 311 5,669
Net closing amount at 31 December 2010 1,147 670 1,065 400 3,282
Cost
At 1 January 2009 2,080 1,991 3,054 575 7,700
Exchange differences (45) (26) (85) 29 (185)
Addinons 285 341 256 155 1,037
Companies acquired 11 7 8 - 26
Disposals 29) (56) (52) (56) (193)
At 31 December 2009 2,302 2,257 3,181 645 8,385
Accumulated depreciation
At | January 2009 1,546 1,415 2,008 251 5,220
Exchange differences (39 (23) @7 “7n (156)
Charge for year 203 318 319 99 939
Disposals (22) (50) (50) 57 (179)
At 31 December 2009 1,688 1,660 2,230 246 5,824
Net closing amount at 31 December 2009 614 597 951 399 2,561

The net book value of property, plant and equipment held under finance leases 15 £ml at 31 December 2010 (2009

£ml) ‘

12 Investments in associates ‘
2010 2009 |
£'000 £000

Value

At 1 January 49 63 1

Exchange differences (16} 22

Share of results after tax and minority interests 74 (36)

Disposals (20) -

At 3] December 87 49

Net book amount 87 49

No impairment losses have been incurred duning the year (2009 £ml) relaning 10 1mvestments 1n associates
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13 Held-to-maturity investments
2010 2009
£000 £600
Government bills and bonds 729 751
Corporate bonds 995 842
1,724 1,593

The credit quality of the held-to-matunity mvestments can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings,
where available, or to historical information about counterparty default rates

The credit ratings presented 1n this note indicate that the invesiments are investment grade with limited chance of
default

AA 792 732
BB/B 666 616
Not rated 266 245
Total 1,724 1,593

- . - - Y

The maturnity profile of the held-to-maturity investments 1s as follows

Upto 1 year 405 76
Between 1 and 5 years 588 605
Over 5 years 731 912
Total 1,724 1,593
14 Available for sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets are categornised according to their nature into one of two categornies

1) Investments and deposits, which consist mainly of fixed deposits - these investments are held at fair value
and are classified between current and non-current assets according to maturity date

2) Other investments are held at fair value unless a fair value cannot be accurately determined in which case

they are held at cost less any provision for impairment
Other Investmenis

Investments & Deposits Total
£000 £000 £000
At 31 December 2010 348 32 380
At 31 December 2009 208 21 229
Analysis of available for sale financial assets:
Non-current Current Total
£7000 £'060 £000
At 31 December 2010 - 380 380
At 31 December 2009 - 229 229

Most of the available for sale financial assets are not assessed by external credit rating agencies Historically,
the counterparty default rate has been low All the available for sale financial assets have a matunty profile of
less than one year at the balance sheet date
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2010 2009
Assets Liabilities Assets Lintwlities
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Interest rate swaps - 232 6 440
Foreign currency derivatives 137 2,482 1,506 9,180
Forward foreign exchange 123 2,474 3,006 131
260 5,188 4,518 9.751
Current 89 2,168 1,395 5,003
Non-current 171 3,020 3,123 4,748
260 ' 5,188 4,518 9,751
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 3t December
2010 2009
£000 £000
The denvanves held with AA/A rated counterparties 260 4,518
Financial assets Between Between
Less than land2 2and 4
1 year years years Total
£000 £000 £°000 £°000
31 December 2010
Interest rate swaps - - - -
Foreign currency denvatives 56 81 - 137
Forward foreign exchange contracts 33 51 39 123
89 132 39 260
3 December 2009
Interest rate swaps 6 - - 6
Foreign currency denvatives 772 433 301 1,506
Forward foreign exchange contracts 617 834 1,555 3,006
1,395 1,267 1,856 4,518
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15 Derivatives (continued)
Financial liabilities Between Between
Less than land 2 2and4
1 year years years Total
£°000 £000 £600 £'000
31 December 2010
Interest rate swaps 232 - - 232
Foreign currency denvauves 1,831 651 - 2,482
Forward foreign exchange contracts 105 1,922 447 2,474
2,168 2,573 447 5,188
31 December 2009
Interest rate swaps 440 - - 440
Foreign currency denvatives 4,561 2,975 1,643 9,179
Forward foreign exchange contracts 2 9 121 132
5,003 2,984 1,764 9,751

- - - - - - - - - .- - -

The CGH Group’s treasury policies are approved by the Board The policies and procedures 1n place establish
specific gmdelines to manage currency nisk, hqudity nsk and 1nterest rate nsk and the use of counter-parties and
financial instruments to manage these

The CGH Group uses vanous denvanve mstruments including forward foreign exchange contracts, interest rate
contracts and foreign currency derivatives to manage the nsks arnsing from variations in currency and mierest
earnings that anse from movements in exchange and interest rates Dernvative instruments purchased are pnmanly
domuinated 1n the currencies of the CGH Group’s main markets

Transactions maturing within 12 months of the balance sheet date are classified tn current matunties Transactions
matunng 1n a penod i excess of 12 months of the balance sheet date are classified as non-current matunties

a) Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts

The CGH Group’s major currency transaction exposure anses in US Dollars and Euros and the CGH Group
conftinues 1o adopt a prudent approach i1n actively managing this exposure  As at 31 December 2010 the CGH Group
had outstanding foreign exchange contracts, US Dollars and Euros, amounting to a principal value of £66 3 mithon
(2009 £34 2 mullion)

b) Interest Rate Contract

The CGH Group penodically uses interest rate hedges, principally interest rate swaps, to mitigate the impact vpon
nkerest earmings and expense of changes n interest rates The notional principal amounts of outstanding interest
rate contracts as at 31 December 2010 was US Dollars 15 7m at a floor of 3 75%, capped rate of 6% and termination
date of 30 September 2011 (2009 US Dollars 17 4 nulhion at a floor of 3 25%, capped rate of 6% and termination
date of 30 September 2011)

¢}  Foreign currency derivatives

The CGH Group uses foreign currency denvauves 10 hedge currency exposures ansing in US Dollars and Eures and
the CGH Group continues to adopt a prudent approach 1 actively managing this exposure
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15 Derivatives (continued)

d)  Price risk

The CGH Group does not have a matenal exposure to commodaty price nsk

Fair Value Estimation

1) Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purpose of measuring fair value

The fair values of financial assets traded on liquid markets are determined with reference 1o quoted market prices
(uncludes hsted equity secunties within ‘other investments’ classified as ‘Available for Sale’)

The fair values of cther financial assets and hiabilities {(excluding derivative instruments) are denved by assessing
the discounted cash flow expecied to be denved including an impairment provision, where necessary (includes
‘Investments and Deposits’ classified as ‘Available for Sale’)

The fair values of denvanve financial instruments are calculated using quoted prices  Where such prices are not
available, a discounted cash flow analysis 18 performed using the apphcable yield curve for the duration of the
mstruments for non-optional derivatives and opuon pricing models for optional denvatives Foreign currency
contracts are measured using quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves derived from quoted interest rates
matching matunities of the contracts I[nterest rate swaps are measured at the present value of future cash flows
estimated and discounted based on the applicable yield curves from quoted 1nterest rates

2) Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to imual recogmtion
at fair value, grouped 1mto levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which fair value 15 observable

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted pnces (unadjusted) 1n active markets for identical
assets or habiiies This category includes investments, deposits and histed equity secuniuies classified as available-
for-sale and measured at fair value

Level 2 fair value measurements are those denved from inputs other than quoted prices included within Jevel 1 that
are observable for the assets or hability, either directly (1 e as prices) or indirectly (1 ¢ derived from prices) This
category 1ncludes certain unlisted equity securiies and denivative financial instruments

Level 3 fair value measurements are those denved from valuation techmgques that include nputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs} The CGH Group does not have any
financial instruments that fall under this category

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2010 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss
Derivative financial assets - 260 - 260
Available-for-sale financial assets
Investment and deposits 20 12 - 32
Other investments 348 - - 348
Financial habilities at fair value
through profit and loss
Derivative financial habiliues - (5,188) - (5,188)

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the period
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16 Trade and other receivables
2010 2009
£'000 £°000
Receivables and prepayments
Trade receivables 32,530 29,014
Amounts due from associates - 455
Less provision for bad debt (1,587) (1,368)
Trade receivables - net 30,943 28,101
Amounts due from parent company 19,006 -
Amounts due from fellow CGSC Group companies 10,376 -
Other debtors 4,996 4,499
Prepayments 2,064 2,141
67,385 34,741
Analysed as
Current 66,675 34,741
Non-current 710 -
67,385 34,741

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had exposures to individual trade counterparties within trade recervables
In accordance with Group policy, Group operating companies continvally monitor exposures agamst
mdividual clients No individual trade counterparty credit exposures 1s considered sigmficant i the ordinary
course of trading activity Management does not expect any significant losses from non-performance by trade
counterparties with exception of those where a provision has already been established

The trade and other receivables carrying amount approximates its fair value

Movements on the Group provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows

2010 2009
£'000 £000
At 1 January (1,368) (939)
Currency translation adjustments - (2)
Provisions made for receivables impairment (303) (467)
Recervables written off during the year as uncollectible 84 40
Unused amounts reversed - -
At 31 December (1,587 (1,368)
Trade Bad debt Net trade
receivables provision recervables
At 31 December 2010 £'000 £'000 £000
Not overdue 23,805 - 23,805
Past due not more than three months 1,159 - 1,159
Past due more than three months and not more than six months 3,301 (40) 3,261
Past due more than s1x months 4,265 (1,547) 2,718
32,530 (1,587) 30,943
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16 Trade and other receivables (continued)
Trade Bad debt Net trade
receivables provision receivables
At 31 December 2009 £'000 £000 £'000
Not overdue 18,520 - 18,520
Past due not more than three months 5,592 - 5,592
Past due more than three months and not more than s1x months 1,909 (13) 1,896
Past due more than si1x months 3,448 (1,355) 2,093
29,469 (1,368) 28,101
17 Cash and cash equivalents
2010 2009
£'000 £000
Cash at bank and 1n hand 86,973 80,907
Short term deposits 11,591 8,605
98,564 89,512
Fiduciary 84,660 76,229
Own funds 13,904 13,283
89,512

The credit quality of cash at bank and short-term deposits can be assessed by reference to external credit

98,564

ratings, where available, or to lustorical information about counterparty default rates

AAA
AA

A

Not rated

898 4,497
47,972 27.064
46,128 54,603

3,566 3,348
98,564 89,512

R R

The effective interest rate for cash and cash equivalents was 09% (2009 09%) These deposits have an

average matunty of 12 days (2009 2 days)
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18 Trade and other payables

2010 2009

£000 £°000
Insurance creditors 88,532 76,976
Social security and other taxes 1466 1,059
Amounts due to associates - 202
Other creditors 2,808 5,905
Accruals and deferred income 13,409 10,110
106,215 94,252

19 Financal Instruments by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below

Loans and Held-to- Avalable
At 31 December 2010 recervables maturity Denvatives for sale Total
Assets per balance sheet £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Available-for-sale financial assets - - - 380 380
Held-to-matunty investments - 1,724 - - 1,724
Dernivauve financial instruments - - 260 - 260
Trade and other recervables 67,385 - - - 67,385
Cash and cash equivalents 98,564 - - - 98,564
165,949 1,724 260 380 168,313
) " - ’ B o Other T
financial
Denvatives habihties Total
Liabilities per balance sheet £000 £000 £000
Borrowings - 24,063 24,065
Trade and other payables - 106,215 106,215
Dernvative financial instruments 5,188 - 5,188
5,188 130,280 135,468
Loans and Held-to- Available
At 31 December 2009 receivables matunty Denvatives for sale Total
Assets per balance sheet £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Available-for-sale financial assets - - - 229 229
Held-to-maturity investments - 1,593 - - 1,593
Denvauve financial instruments - - 4,518 - 4,518
Trade and other recervables 34,741 - - - 34,741
Cash and cash equivalents 89,512 - - - 89,512
124,253 £,593 4518 229 130,593
) Other
financial
Denivatives habihties Total
Liabilities per balance sheet £'000 £000 £000
Borrowings - 30,029 30.029
Trade and other payables - 94,252 94,252
Derivative financial instruments 9,751 - 9,751
9,751 124,281 134,032
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20 Borrowings
2010 2009
£'000 £000
Current
Bank borrowing 24,065 2,540
24,065 2,540
i\lon-current ‘
Bank borrowing - 27,489
- 27,489
‘Total borrowings 24,065 30,029

The total borrowings are denominated 1n US$ and Briush Pounds At 31 December 2010, the US$ denominated
loans amounted to US$31 2 million (2009 US$34 6 million)

The bank borrowings within this note are stated gross of 1ssue costs, which have been capitalised and will be
written off over the life of the loans The carrying amounts of the total 'Borrowings' stated above approximate
their fair values as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009

The exposure of the borrowings of the CGH Group to interest rate changes and periods 1in which the borrowings

reprice are as follows

Total borrowings at 31 December 2010
Total borrowings at 31 December 2009

Less than
1 year
£'000

24,065

30,029

-41-

Over Fixed
5 years rate Total
£000 £000 £'000
- - 24,065
- - 30,029
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20 Borrowings (continued)

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet dates were as follows

2010 2009
% Yo
Bank overdrafis - -
Unsecured loan notes - -
Bank borrowings 402 236
Matunty of borrowings 2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Less than 1 year 24,065 2,540
Between 1 and 2 years - 27,489
Between 2 and 3 years - -
Between 3 and 4 years - R
Between 4 and 5 years - -
Over 5 years - -
24,065 30,029
The CGH Group has undrawn committed borrowing facihties
Matunty of borrewings 2010 2009
£000 £'000
Floating rate
- expiring within one year 5,925 -
- expirng beyond one year - 4,242
Fixed rate
- expiring within one year - -
- expiring beyond one year - -
5,925 4,242

- e e - - . o e - P . —— PR - - - - ’

The committed working capatal and acquisition facilities are secured by a floating charge over the assets of the
company The cost of drawings are between 150 and 200 basis points above the relevant LIBOR These
facilies include common debt and interest cover covenants which the Group expects to continue to comply
with
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabiliues and when the deferred mncome tax relates to the same fiscal authority
The following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown 1n the consol:dated balance sheet

Assets Liabihities Net
2010 2019 2010
£'000 £'000 £'000
Property, plant and equipment 116 - 116
Provisions 536 - 536
Losses 1,351 - 1,351
Deferred income - (3,049) (3,049)
Intangibles other than goodwill - (194) (194)
Pensions 3,773 - 3,773
Share based payments & other remuneration accrued but not
paid 412 - 412
Derivative financial instruments 1,330 - 1,330
Other - - -
Tax assets / (liabihties) 7,518 (3,243) 4,275
Set off tax . - .
Net tax assets / (habilities) 7.518 (3,243} 4,275
Assets Liabilities Net
2009 2009 2009
£'000 £'000 £000
Property, plant and equipment 140 (6) 134
Provisions 375 - 375
Losses 5,188 - 5,188
Deferred income - (3,525) (3,525)
Intangibles other than goodwill - (146) (146)
Pensions 5,148 - 5,148
Share based payments & other remuneration accrued but not
paid 223 - 223
Derivauve financial instruments 1,465 - 1,465
Other 6 an (5)
Tax assets / (liabilities) 12,545 (3,688) 8,857
Set off tax - - -
Net tax assets / (lhabilities) 12,545 (3,688) 8,857
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21 Deferred income taxes (continued)
Atl Exchange Charge/ Charge/  Acquisttion At 3l
Janoary differences  (credit)to  (credit) to / disposal December
2610 income equity of sub 2010
£000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
Accelerated tax depreciation (134) - 18 - - (116)
Provisions (375 - (161) - - (536)
Losses (5,188) (75) 2,543 - 1,369 (1,351)
Deferred income 3,525 52 596 - (1,124) 3,049
Intangibles other than goodwill 146 - 48 - - 194
Pensions (5,148) - '¢)) 1,384 - (3,773)
Share based payments (223) (17 (82) (90) - 412)
Derivative financial instruments (1,465) - 135 - - (1,330)
Other 5 - (&) - - -
Net tax (assets) / habihities (8,857) (40) 3,083 1,294 245 (4,275)

Deferred tax assets are recogmsed for tax losses to the extent that the reahsation of the related tax benefits
through the future taxable profits 1s considered probable A deferred tax asset of £5,254,000 (2009 £3,352,000)
has not been recogmsed 1n the balance sheet 1n respect of certain of the CGH Group's operations, principally in
the Umted Kingdom where 1t 1s considered that the losses are unlikely to be utilised 1n the foreseeable future
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22 Provisions
Litigation Deferred
provisions consrderation Total
£000 £000 £'000
At 1 January 2010 625 2,259 2,884
Exchange adjustment 9 82 91
Charged to the income statement 804 - 804
Adjustment - (46) (46)
Pard/utilised 1n the year (114) (968) (1,082)
At 31 December 2010 1,324 1,327 2,651
At 1 January 2009 2,702 5,681 8,383
Exchange adjustment - 22 22
Charged to the income statement 216 - 216
Additions - 232 232
Paid 1n the year (2,293) (3,676) {5,969)
At 31 December 2009 625 2,259 2,884
2010 2009

Analysis of total provisions: £000 £000
Non-current to be utilised 1n over 1 year 960 1,598
Current to be utilised within 1 year 1,691 1,286

2,651 2,884

Litigation provisions

The Group 1s subject to various claims and legal proceedings principally consisting of alleged errors and
omissions in connection with the placement of insurance / rensurance and consulting services A
balance sheet provision 1s established 1n respect of such 1ssues when 1t 1s probable that the hability has
been incurred and the amount of the hability can be reasonably esumated The CGH Group anatyses 1ts
htigation exposures based on available information, including external legal consultaton where
appropnate, to assess its potential hability Where appropriate, the CGH Group also provides for the
cost of defending such matters The value of the higation provision may be revised from time to time
prior to final settlement Where a hitigation provision has been established, 1t 1s stated gross of any third
party recovery, all such recoveries are included as "other debtors”, within trade and other recervables
As at 31 December 2010, 1n connection with certain lihgation matters, the CGH Group's litigation
provisions mclude an amount of £1 mullion (2009 £mil) to reflect this gross basis and the corresponding
insurance recovery has been included within trade and other receivables

Deferred consideration

Provision 1s made 1n respect of additional consideration payable following the completion of an
acqusiion The value of the deferred consideration may be revised from time to time prior to final
settlement
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23 Capital and reserves attributable to the Company’s equity holders
Capital 2010 2010 2009 2009
Nomunal Nominal
Number of values Number of values
shares £000s shares £000s
At 31 December
Authonsed
Ordinary shares of 1p each 19,406,798 194 18,000,000 180
Preferred ordinary shares of 1p each 8,516,056 85 8,516,056 85
Total at 31 December 279 265
Allotted, called up and fully pard
Ordinary shares of 1p each 18,000,000 180 18,000,000 180
Preferred ordinary shares of 1p each 8,516,056 85 8,516,056 85
Total share capital at 31 December 265 265
Movement during year of allotted, called up and
fully paid.
Ordinary shares of 1p each
At I January 18,000,000 180 18,000,000 180
Issued / {redeemed) dunng the year - - - -
At 31 December 18,000,600 180 18,000,000 180
Preferred ordinary shares of 1p each
At 1 January 8,516,056 85 8,516,056 85
Issued during the year - - - -
8,516,056 85 8,516,056 85

At 31 December

- - - - - -

The preferred ordinary shares carry enhanced voting nghts and preferential rnights to return of caputal 1n a

winding up

Purchases of shares by the ESOT and EBT are deducted against retained earnings, see Note 2% Employee

Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) and Employee Benefit Trust (EBT)
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23 Capital and reserves attributable to the Company’s equity holders (continued)
Reserves

Share premium
The share premium anses from the 1ssue of shares 1n excess of nominal value Amounts held within this
reserve cannot be distributed to shareholders by way of dividend

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve 1s a reserve fund required to be created by the UK Compames Act (2006)
when shares are redeemed out of retained profits and not out of a new 1ssue of share capital The reserve 1s
created by making a transfer out of the retained earnings account to a specially designated account, the capital
redemption reserve account Amounts held 1n this account cannot be distributed to shareholders by way of
dividend, although they may be used to make bonus 1ssues of share capital The purpose of the reserve 1s to
ensure that the company’s capital is not diluted by the redemption of some of the shares

The capital redemption reserve was £276,000 as at 31 December 2010 (2009 £276,000) and 1s shown 1n the
consolhidated statement of changes 1n equity on page 9

Fair value and other reserves

The fair value and other reserves represent accumulated gamns and losses anising on the revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets that have been recogmsed 1n other comprehensive imncome, net of amounts
reclassified to the income statement when those assets have been disposed of or are determuned to be
impaired The analysis of this reserve 1s shown in the consolidated statement of changes 1n equity

Foreign currency translation reserve

Exchange differences relating 1o the translation of the net assets of the Group's foreign operations from their
funcuonal currencies to the Group's presentanional currency (£ sterling) are recogmsed directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated 1n the foreign currency translation reserve The analysis of this
reserve 1s shown 1n the consolidated statement of changes 1n equity

Retained earnings
The analysis of this reserve 1s shown in the conschdated staternent of changes 1n equity

- 47-




Cooper Gay (Holdings) Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2010

Notes to the financial statements

A4 Non-controlling interest
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
£000 £'000
At 1 January 4,572 3,753
Exchange adjustment 382 (78)
Minonty interest change 1n shareholding - 1,126
Profit for the year 2,362 2,169
Dividends (2,111) (2,398)
At 31 December 5,205 4,572

The non-controlling 1nterests relate mainly to subsidiaries in Latin Amenca Oa 11 January 2011, the CGH
Group acquired the outstanding non-controlling interest in Cooper Gay Martinez Del Rio SA De CV  See
note 32

25 Cash flow from operating activities
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
£000 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax including discontinued operations 34,091 27,805
Interest income receivable (776) 817
Interest payable on bank loans 1,092 1,416
Unrealised mark-to-market on denvative financial instruments loss /
(gain) 2,788 (14,653)
Unrealised foreign exchange loss 1,490 805
Pension financing net expense 851 878
Amorusation of finance costs 227 212
Depreciation on property, plant and equpment 1,004 939
Amortisation of intangible assets 2,234 2,227
Impairment of intangible assets 292 158
Amortisation of share based payments 450 422
Share of results of associates a4 36
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equpment 2y (1
Loss on disposal of associate investment 20 -
Profit on disposal of subsidiary undertakings (18,874} -
Increase 1n trade and other recervables (33,518) (5,381)
Increase / (decrease) 1n trade and other payables 23,480 (6,000)
Increase / (decrease) in provisions for habihties and charges 690 (2,077)
Decrease 1n retirement benefit obligation (778) (989)
Cash generated from operattons 14,687 4,970
Interest pard (1,091) (1,302)
Interest received 422 676
Tax paid - UK corporation tax received - 551
Tax paid - Overseas tax pad (4,213) (6,242)
Net cash generated by / (used in) operating activities 9.805 (1,347)
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26  Business disposals

On 9™ July 2010, the Company disposed of 1ts shareholdings n 1ts North Amencan subsidiaries to Swett &
Crawford Group, Inc, a fellow subsidiary of the ultimate parent undertaking, Cooper Gay Swett & Crawford
Limited

The subsidianes and shareholdings disposed of are as follows

Cooper Gay Steele & Company Limuted 100%
Cooper Gay Risk Services Inc 100%
Creechurch International Underwnters Limted 100%
Cooper Gay North Amenca Inc 100%
Creechurch Insurance Underwriters Agency Inc 100%
Total
£000
Net assets disposed of 12,936
Gain on disposal 18,874
Fair value of consideration receivable 31,810

Analysis of the profit for the year from discontinued operations is as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2010 2009

£000 £000
Fees and commisstons 10,163 12,661
Other operating income 101 385

Other operating costs (4,731} (10,464)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges (60} (179)
Operating profit 5473 2,403

Net finance costs 74 (5)
Gain on disposal of subsidianes 18,874 -
Profit before tax 24,421 2,398

Income tax expense 2,271 (294)
Praofit for the year from discontinming operations 26,692 2,104

Following the dispesal of Cooper Gay Steele & Cempany Limited, a new subsidiary, Cooper Gay Holdings, Inc was
mcorporated in Flonda as the new intermedtate holding company for the CGH Groups’ investment in Cooper Gay
LLC
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27 Retirement benefit obligations

The CGH Group operates a number of pension schemes throughout the world The principal pension schemes
are 1n the United Kingdom ('UK") the Cooper Gay Defined Contribution Scheme and the Cooper Gay Defined
Benefit Scheme In addition to the UK, the Group operates other defined benefit pension schemes for some
employees 1n Germany Pension schemes that hold assets are held 1n a separately admimstered fund

Since October 2001, new jomers in the U K are generally eligible to join the Cooper Gay Defined Contribution
Scheme Contributions to the scheme are charged to the income statement so as to spread the cost of pensions
over the employees working lives with the entuty The cost of the contnibutions to the group scheme amount to
£1,746,000 (2009 £1,617,000) bemng between 10% and 17 5% of pensionable salary

In addition to the UK scheme, five (2009 mne) overseas subsidianes operate non-contnbutory defined
contribution pension schemes covermg all ehigible employees Contributions are at the discretion of the directors
of those compames based on a percentage of ehigible salary The charge for the year was £322,000 (2009
£673,000)

The Group pension costs for the year are compnsed as follows

2010 2010 2010

UK Overseas Total

£7000 £°000 £000
Defined benefit schemes 1,143 374 1,517
Defined contribution schemes 1,746 322 2,068
2,889 696 3,585

2009 2009 2009

UK Overseas Total

£7000 £000 E£000
Defined benefit schemes 1,067 354 1,421
Defined contnbution schemes 1,617 673 2,290

2,684 1,027 3,711
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27 Retirement benefit obhgations (continued)
UK defined benefit scheme and German defined benefit scheme

The principal assumptions made in the valuations as at 31 December 2010 and pnor year were as follows

UK German
31 December 2010 Note Scheme Scheme
Rate of increase 1n salanes - 2 50%
Rate of increase 1n pension payments a 320% 1 75%
Discount rate 540% 5 50%
Inflation rate 3 50% 2 90%
Revaluation rate for deferred pensioners 2 80% n/a
Expected return on plan assets b 631% nfa
Mortality - hife expectancy at age 65 for male member c 229 200

UK German
31 December 2009 Note Scheme Scheme
Rate of increase 1n salaries - 2 50%
Rate of increase 1n pension payments a 380% 175%
Discount rate 5 60% 625%
Inflation rate 3 60% 290%
Revaluation rate for deferred pensioners 3 60% n/a
Expected return on plan assets b 6 28% n/a
Mortality - life expectancy at age 65 for male member c 228 18 04

a) UK Scheme - Limited Price Indexation to a maximum of 5%, mimmum 3% appropnate

b) The expected return on plan assets was determuned by considering the expected returns available on the
assets underlying the current investment policy Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based
on gross redemption yields as at the end of the reporting penod Expected returns on equity reflect the
long-term real rates of return experienced 1n the respective markets

¢} Mortality assumptions for the UK scheme are based on the 92 Medium Cohort Year of Birth Mortality
assumptions for the German scheme are based on the Heubeck 2005 G tables

Defined benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet 2010 2009
£000 £000
Present value of funded obligations (44,518) (46,007)
Fair value of plan assets 31,099 27,332
Net habihity (13,419) (18,675)

- e w4 s oa - - - - . - e e e e - s me s e wr o wer mm e o m =y
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27 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)
UK Scheme

Reconciliation of defined benefit liability 2010 2009

£000 £000
Opening defined benefit hability (14,115) (9,339)
Pension income / (expense} (1,143) (1,067
Employer contributions i,445 1,531
Total gain / (loss) recogmsed 1n SOCI 5,394 (5,240)
Net liability recogmsed 1n the balance sheet (8,419) (14,115)

German Scheme
Reconciliation of defined benefit liability 2010 2009

£000 £000
Opening defined benefit lability (4,560) (4,408)
Exchange differences 174 277
Pension mcome / (expense) (374) (353)
Total gain / (loss) recogmsed in SOCI (240) (76)
Net habihity recogmsed n the balance sheet (5,000) (4,560)

Total

2010 2009

£000 £°000
Opening defined benefit habilaty (18,675) (13,747)
Exchange differences 174 277
Pension income / (expense) (1,517) (1,420)
Employer contributions 1,445 1,531
Total (gain) / loss recogmised tn SOCI 5,154 (3,316)
Net hability recognised in the balance sheet (13.419) (18,675)
Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation

UK Scheme
2010 2000

£2000 £2000
Opening defined benefit obligation (41,447) (32,401)
Service cost (347) (429)
Interest cost (2,321) (2,074)
Gain / (loss) on defined benefit oblhigation 3,612 (223)
Changes 1n assumptions - (7.616)
Actual benefit payments 1,185 1,296
Closing defined benefit obligation (39.518) (41,447)
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German Scheme

2010 2009
£7000 £7000
Opening defined benefit obhigation (4,560) (4,408)
Exchange differences 174 277
Service cost (120) {113)
Interest cost (254) (240)
Gain/ (loss) on defined benefit obligation 9 (148)
Changes 1n assumptions (249) 72
Closing defined benefit obligation (5.,000) (4,560)
Total
2016 2009
£000 £000
Opening defined benefit obligation 46,007 (36,809)
Exchange differences 174 277
Service cost {667) (542)
Interest cost (2,575) (2,314)
Gain / (loss) on defined benefit obligation 3,621 (371)
Changes in assumptions {249) (7,544)
Actual benefit payments 1,185 1,296
Closing defined benefit oblhigation (44,518) (46,007)
Reconciliation of fair value of assets
UK Scheme
2010 2009
£000 £000
Opening value of assets 27,332 23,062
Expected return of assets 1,725 1,436
Gain / (loss) on assets 1,782 2,599
Employer contributions 1,445 1,531
Actual benefit payments (1,185 (1,296)
Closing value of assets 31,099 27,332

The German Scheme does not hold any assets
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27 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

The analysis of the fair value of the scheme assets is as

follows:
Long-term rate

31 December 2010 of return Value

% £000 %
Equities 750% 15,225 48 96%
Bonds 5 30% 12,751 41 00%
Other assets 6 00% 2,153 692%
Cash 1 70% 970 312%
[nterest cost 31,099 100 00%

Long-term rate

31 December 2009 of return Value

% £000 %
Equities 8 00% 12,195 44 62%
Bonds 5 50% 12,232 44 75%
Other assets 6 20% 123 045%
Cash 2 20% 2,782 10 18%
Interest cost 27,332 100 00%
Reconciliation of return on assets UK Scheme

2010 2009
£:000 £7000

Expected return on assets 1,725 1,436
Gain / (loss) on assets 1,782 2,599
Actual return on assets 3,507 4,035

A A e - - - - - .4 - . —~ [ - - - J—

The amounts recogmsed 1n the consolidated income statement are as follows

UK Scheme

2010 2009

£7000 £7000
Service cost (included as part of staff costs) (547) (429)
[nterest cost (2,321) (2,074)
Expected return on assets 1,725 1,436
Total (included within finance costs) (596) (638)
Impact on profit/(loss) before tax (1,143) (1,067)

-54-




Notes to the financial statements

27 Retirement benefit obligations (conunued)

Service cost (inctuded as part of staff costs)
Interest cost
Expected return on assets

Total (included within finance costs)

Impact on profit/(loss) before tax

Service cost (included as part of staff costs)
Interest cost
Expected return on assets

- -

Total (included wathin finance costs)

Impact on profit/(loss) before tax

The amounts recogmsed m the consolidated statenént of comprehensive
income 1s as follows

Gain / (loss) on defined benefit obligation
Gain / (Joss) on plan assets

Total actuarial gains / (fosses) recogmsed
Opening cumulatve actuanal losses recognised

Closing cumulative actuanal losses recogmsed

Gain / (loss) on defined benefit obligation
Total actuanal gains / (losses) recogmsed
Opening cumulanve actuanal losses recognised

Clesing cumulanve actuarial losses recogmsed
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German Scheme

2010 2009
£7000 £7000
(120) (113)
(254) (240)
(254) (240)
(374) 7 (353)
Total
2010 2009
£000 £000
(667) (542)
(2,575) (2,314}
1,725 1,436
" (850) (878)
(1,517 (1,420)
UK Scheme
2010 2009
£000 £7000
31,612 (7,839)
1,782 2,599
5,394 (5,240)
(7,476) (2,236)
(2,085) ' (7,476)
German Scheme
2010 2009
£'000 £'000
(240) (76)
(240) (76)
867 943
627 867
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27 Retirement benefit obligations {contunued)

Gain / (loss) on defined benefit cbligation
Gain / (loss) on plan assets

Total actuarial gains / (losses) recogmsed
Opening cumulative actuanal losses recogmised

Closing cumulative actuanial losses recogmised

The five year history of expenence adjustments 1s as follows

2010

£000

Defined benefit obligation at end of year (39,518)
Fair value of plan assets 31,099

Deficit i the scheme (8,419)

2010

£'000

Defined benefit obligation at end of year (5,000
Fair value of plan assets -

Deficit in the scheme (5,000)

2010

£'000

Defined benefit obligation at end of year (44,518)
Fair value of plan assets 31,099

Deficit in the scheme (13,419)
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Total
2010 20090
£'000 £000
3,372 (7.915)
1,782 2.599
5,154 (5,316)
(6,609) (1293)
(1,455) (6,609)
UK Scheme
2009 2008 2007 2006
£000 £'000 £'000 £000
(41,447 (32,401) (33,079) (32,934)
27,332 23,062 26,358 24,535
(14,115) (9,339) (6,721) (8,399)
German Scheme
2009 2008 2007 2006
£'000 £000 £000 £000
(4,560) (4,408) (3,551) (3,469)
(4,560) (4,408) (3.551) (3,469)
Total
2009 2008 2007 2006
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
(46,007)  (36,809) (36,630) (36,403)
27,332 23,062 26,358 24,535
(18,675) (13,747  (10,272) (11,868)
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27 Retirement benefit obhgations (continued)

Difference between the expected and actual return on plan assets:

2010
UK Scheme
Dafference between expected and actual return on
plan assets
- amount (£'000) 1,782
- expressed as a percentage of plan assets 6%

German Scheme

Difference between expected and actual return cn

plan assets

- amount (£'000) -
- expressed as a percentage of plan assets -

Experience gains / (losses) on plan liabilities:

2010
UK Scheme
Expenence gains / (losses) on plan hiabihties
- amount (£'000) 3,612
- expressed as a percentage of the present value of
the plan liabihues 9%

German Scheme

Expenence gains / (losses) on plan habilities

- amount (£'000) 9
- expressed as a percentage of the present value of

the plan habilites 0%

2009

2,599
10%

2009

(223)

1%

(148)

3%

Cooper Gay (Holdings) Limited
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2008

{5,652)
25%

2008

(418)

1%

(64)

2%

2007 2006
245 838
1% 3%
2007 2006

(589) 68
2% 0%

(111) (404)

3% 12%

The expected employer contnibutions to the defined benefit schemes for the year ending 31 December 2011 1s

£1,329,000

28 Commitments
Capital commitments

Capatal expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 DBecember

2010 2009

£000 £000
Property, plant and equipment 326 146
Intangible assets 102 1
428 147
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28 Commitments (continued)
Operating lease commitments - where a Group company is the lessee

The future aggregate rmmmum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2010 2009

£'000 £000
Not later than 1 year 1,535 2,440
Later thar 1 year and not later than 5 years 4,794 7,016
Later than 5 years 2,722 3,371
9,051 12,827

Legal and other loss contingencies

The Company and 1ts subsidiaries are subject 1o various claims and legal proceedings principally consisting of
alleged errors and omissions in connection with the placement of msurance / remsurance and consulting
services

IFRS requires that liabihues for contingencies are recorded when 1t 1s probable that a hability has been incurred
on or before the balance sheet date and the amount can be reasonably estimated Sigmficant management
Judgement 1s required to comply with thus guidance The CGH Group analyses 1ts hiigation exposure based on
available information, including external legal consultation where appropriate to assess its potential Liability

On the basis of present information, amounts already provided, availability of insurance coverages and legal
advice recerved, 1t 1s the opimon of management that the disposition or ultsrnate determination of such claims
will not have a matenal adverse effect on the consolidated financial statements of the CGH Group However,
amounts subject to claims can be matenal and 1t 1s possible that future results of operations or cash flows for
any annual period could be matenally affected by an unfavourable resolution to these matters

At 31 December 2010, the CGH Group had contingent habiliues 1n respect of guarantees and letters of credit on
behalf of CGH Group companies amounting to £ml (2009 £ml)

29 Employee Share Qwnership Trust (ESOT) & Employee Benefit Trust (EBT)

Following the acquisition of the company by Cooper Gay Swett & Crawford Limited, the shares held within the
share ownership and benefit trusts were exchanged for shares in Cooper Gay Swett & Crawford Limited As at
31 December 2010, the ESOT held 4,172,812 1n Cooper Gay Swett & Crawford Limited (2009 Cooper Gay
Holdings Limited 1,489,160) ordinary A shares The esumated fair value of these shares 1s £2,628,872 (2009
£4,095,190)

As at 31 December 2010, the EBT held 14,372,700 ordinary A shares in Cooper Gay Swett & Crawford Limited
(2009 Cooper Gay Holdings Lumited 3,046,125} The esumated fair value of these shares 1s £6,467,715
(2009 £6,853,871) These are the only assets of the EBT and are held for shares 1ssuable m respect of the Joint
Ownership Equity Scheme The fair value of these shares 1s fixed o the scheme exercise price, see Note 5 for
further details
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30 Principal subsidiary and associated companies

The following were the principal subsidiary and associated entities at 31 December 2010 Unless otherwise shown,
the capital of each company 15 wholly-owned, 15 1 ordinary shares and the principal country of operation 1s the

country of incorporation / registration

Country of Effective
Incorporation Interest

Principal Subsidiaries / Registration (%) Nature of business

Cooper Gay (UK} Limited England 100% Intermedsate holding company

Cooper Gay & Company Limited' England 100% Insurance and reinsurance
[ntermediary

Cooper Gay (Acquisitions) Limted England 100% Acquisition vehicle

Oliva Underwnting Management England 100% Underwniting Agency

Limited

Cooper Gay (Employee Trust) (Jersey)

Limited Jersey 100% ESOT

Cooper Gay (Employee Benefit Trust)

Limited Jersey 100% EBT

Junge & Co Versicherungsmakler Germany 100% Insurance Intermedary

GmbH

Gunther Lubsen GmbH? Germany 100% Underwnting Agency

Cooper Gay (France) SASU France 100% Insurance and reinsurance
Intermediary

Cooper Gay (Eastern Europe) Limited” England 51% Reinsurance Intermediary

Cooper Gay {(Asia) Pte Limited Singapore 100% Rewnsurance Intermediary

Cooper Gay (Australia) Pty Limuted > Austraha 100% Remnsurance Intermediary

Cooper Gay (Hong Kong) Limited * Hong Kong 100% Remsurance Intermediary

St Vincent Insurances Limited St Vincent 54 55% Insurance company

St Vincent and the Grenadines St Vincent 54 55% Insurance company

Insurances Limited *

The Grenadines Insurance Company St Vincent 54 55% Insurance company

Limited *

Cooper Gay Martinez Del Rio SA De Mexico 52 5% Remnsurance Intermediary

Cv

Cooper Gay (Ecuador) CV Ecuador 80% Reinsurance Intermediary

Cooper Gay Suramenca Ltda Colombia 65% Rewnsurance Intermediary

Cooper Gay Suramerica 8 A (Panama) Panama 65% Reinsurance Intermediary

Cooper Gay Inversiones Ltda Colombia 65% Remsurance Intermediary

Cooper Gay Medellin Ltda Asesoresde  Colombia 39% Remnsurance [ntermediary

Seguros’

Cooper Gay Chile SA Chile 5001% Reinsurance Intermediary

Cooper Gay do Brasil Ltda Brazil 100% Rewmsurance [ntermediary

Cooper Gay Holdings, Inc USA 100% Intermediate holding company

Cooper Gay LLC®* USA 51% Remsurance Intermediary

' Owned through Cooper Gay (UK) Ltd

2 Owned through Junge & Co Versicherungsmakler GmbH
3 Owned through Cooper Gay (Asia) Pte Limuted

* Owned by Saint Vincent Insurances Limited

3 Owned through Cooper Gay Inversiones Lida

® Owned through Cooper Gay Holdings, Inc
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30  Principal subsidiary and associated companies (conunued)

Unless indicated, the holding 1s of ordinary shares which are held by the Company
* Formerly known as Rewnsurance com ar, LLC

All subsidiaries have a financial year end on 31 December with exception to the following, which have a financial
year end on 30 June

1) St Vincent Insurances Limited
2) St Vincent and the Grenadines Insurances Limited
3) The Grenadines Insurance Company Limited

ASSOCIATE

Country of Effective

Incorporation Interest
Principal Subsidiaries / Registration (%) Nature of business
Grensure Fire & General Insurance Limited  Grenada 50% Insurance intermediary

The holding 1n the associate 1s of ordinary shares which are held by the Company

31 Ultimate Parent Company

Following the transaction discussed 1n the Report of the Directors, the largest group to conschidate these accounts 1s
Cooper Gay Swett & Crawford Limited, a Company incorporated in England under Company number 7254605
The consolhidated accounts of Cooper Gay Swett & Crawford Limited may be obtamned from the company’s
principal office at 52 Leadenhall Street, London EC3A 2EB

32 Post Balance Sheet Events

On 11 Janvary 2011, the CGH Group acquired the outstanding non-controlling interest 1n Cooper Gay Martinez Del
Rio SA De CV for a combined consideration of £9 4m  This consideration comprises cash, deferred cash and shares
and loan notes 1n the ulumate parent undertaking, Cooper Gay Swett & Crawford Limited The net assets acquired
were £1 9m

33 Related party transactions

The directors of the company, by virtue of their office are deemed related parnes with reference to IAS 24 “Related
party disclosures” Details of their remuneration are disclosed 10 note 5 “Employees and Directors® information”

MDS, SGPS, SA 15 a related party by virtue of 1ts shareholding and representation on the Board of Directors n the
parent company During the year, the Group received commission of £847,000 relating to insurance transactions
conducted in the normal course of business with the Sonae Group of which MDS 15 a subsidiary  As at the 31
December 2010, £15,000 was due from the Sonae Group




Cooper Gay (Holdings} Limited
Consoltdated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2010

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Cooper Gay (Holdings) Limmted

We have audited the consohdated financial statements of Cooper Gay (Holdings) Limited for the year ended 31
December 2010 which compnise the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consohdated Statement of Comprehensive
Income, the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the Consohidated
Statement of Changes 1n Equity, the Accounting Polictes and the related notes The financial reporting framework
that has been applied 1 their preparation 1s apphicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Union

Respective responsibmhties of directors and auditors

As explamed more fully 1n the Directors” Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being sausfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility
1s to audit and express an opirion on the financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s
Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body n
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compames Act 2006 and for no other purpose  We do not, 1n giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s
shown or 1nto whose hands 1t may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent 1n wrting

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclesures 1n the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error This sncludes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the group’s circumstances
and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of sigmificant accounting estimates
made by the directors, and the overall presentanon of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements

In our opiion the group financial statements

s give atrue and fair view of the state of the group’s affairs as at 31 December 2010 and of 1its profit and cash
flows for the year then ended,

» have been properly prepared 1n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Report of the Directors for the financial year for which the group
financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the group financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report 1n respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you if, 1n our opinion

¢  certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

e we have not recewved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Other matters

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Cooper Gay (Holdings) Limited for the
year ended 31 December 2010

Q.. O

Roy Clark (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on bhehalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

London 29 March 2011
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Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2010

Cooper Gay (Holdings) Limited
Company Financal Statemenis
Year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
Notes £000 £000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets - -
Tangible assets - -
Investments 1n subsidianes c 26,152 40,227
Investment 1n associates c 12 12
Other investments c - -
26,164 40,239
Current assets
Debtors d 59,236 35,346
Investments - -
Cash 4,603 1,090
63,839 36,436
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year e (28,240) (9,642)
Net current assets 35,599 26,794
Total assets less current liabilities 61,763 67,033
Creditors — amounts falling due after one year f - (27,489)
Provisions for habihiies and charges (862) 877
Net assets excluding pension hability 60,901 38,667
Pension liability g (6,146) (10,163)
Net assets including pension habihity 54,755 28,504
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital h 265 265
Share premium ] 16,952 16,952
Other reserves ] 276 276
Profit and loss reserve ] 37,262 11,011
Total shareholders’ funds 54,755 28,504

- - —

The Accounung Policies and Notes on pages 65 to 68 form an integral part of these financial

statements

Approved by the Board and signed on 1ts behalf on 29 March 2011 by

Y

Phil Rock
Director
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As at 31 December 2010

Cooper Gay (Holdings) Limited
Company Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Profit for the year 21,774 5,490
FRS 17 actuanal (loss)/gain on pension scheme 5,394 (5,240)
Movement on deferred tax on the pension habality (1,456) 1,467
Share based payments 539 580
Net movement 1n shareholders’ funds 26,251 2,297
Opening shareholders’ funds 28,504 26,207
Closing shareholders’ funds 54,755 28,504
Attributable to
Equity shareholders 54,755 28,504
Non-equity shareholders - -
28,504

54,755
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Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The Board has decided that the continued use of UK GAAP at the entity level 1s a more appropnate method of
accounting rather than the apphication of IFRS for the preparation of the Group consolidated accounts These
separate entity level accounts have been produced on a going concern basis under the histonical cost convention and
in accordance with the Compames Act 2006 and applicable accounting standards A summary of the principal
accounting policies 1s set out below

Some disclosure requirements have been satisfied by cross referral to the IFRS financial statements

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into sterling using the exchange rates prevaihng at the date of the
transaction Assets and hiabilities denominated 1n foreign currencies are translated :nto sterling at rates of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date  Exchange differences ansing on translation are taken directly to the profit and loss
reserve

Taxation

The charge for taxation 1s based on the result for the year at current rates of tax and takes into account deferred tax
Full provision for deferred tax, without discounting, 1s made for all nming differences that have ansen but not
reversed at the balance sheet date

Consolidated accounts

Separate consolhidated accounts have been prepared and are presented on pages 5 to 60

Subsidiary and associates

Investments 1n subsicdhanes and associates are stated 1n the balance sheet for the Company at cost less any provisions
for impairment

Investment income

Interest on deposits and nterest bearing investments 1s credited as 1t 15 earned

Dividends distribution

Dividends proposed or declared after the balance sheet date are not recognised as a hability at the balance sheet date

Final dividends are recogmised as a charge to shareholders' funds once approved and nterim dividends are charged
once paid

- 65-




Cooper Gay (Holdings) Limated
Company Fimanaal Statements
Year ended 31 December 2010

Notes to the financial statements
a. Profit and loss account

The Company has taken advantage of the exception contained 1n Section 408 of the Compames Act

2006 not to

present 1ts own profit and loss account The profit for the year recognised 1n the Company Profit and Loss Reserve

15 £21,774,000 (2009 £5,490,000)

b. Dividends

Year Ended

31 December
2010

£'000

Year Ended

31 December
2609

£'000

Interim dividend of nil p per share (2009 i p per share) -

- .-

A final dividend 1n respect of 2010 1s not proposed (2009 ml p) amounting to a total of £ml (2009 £ml) by the Board

¢. Investments Other unhsted
Subsidiaries Associates mvestments Total
Cost £1000 £'000 £000 £'000
At 1 January 2010 40,774 12 - 40,786
Additions 1,418 - - 1,418
Disposals (15,493) - - (15,493)
26,699 12 - 26,711
Provision for impairment (547) - - (547
At 31 December 2010 26,152 12 - 26,164
At 1 Janvary 2009 29,808 12 21 29,841
Additions 10,966 - - 10,966
Disposals - - 21 20
40,774 12 - 40,786
Provision for impairment (547) - - (547
At 31 December 2009 40,227 12 - 40,239

- - - - -~ - -— - - - - - -~
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d. Debtors

Cooper Gay (Holdings) Limited
Company Finanaal Statements
Year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
£000 £'000
Amounts due from subsidianes 32,824 32,796
Amounts due from parent company 19,006 -
Amounts due from fellow CGSC Group companies 6,998 -
Other debtors and prepayments 408 689
Corporation tax recoverable - -
Deferred tax asset - 1,861
59,236 35,346
e. Creditors - amounts falling due within one year
2010 2009
£000 £000
Bank loans and overdrafts 24,065 2,540
Trade creditors - -
Dividends payable - -
Other creditors including tax and social security 229 654
Amounts due to subsidiaries 3.847 6,003
Accruals and deferred income 99 445
28,240 9,642
f.  Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year
2010 2009
£000 £000
Bank loans - 27,489
- 27,489

Details of the Company borrowing are disclosed in note 20 on pages 41 to 42

g. Pension liability

Details of the Company’s pension hability 1s given 1n note 27 on pages 50 to 57

h. Called up share capital
Details of the Company's share capital are given 1n note 23 on pages 46 to 47

i Financial risk management

Details of the Financial Risk Management for the Company are given in the Report of the Directors on page 3
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i Reserves

Cooper Gay (Holdings) Limited
Company Finanaal Statements
Year ended 31 December 2010

Capital
Share redemption Profit & loss
premum reserve reserve Total
£000 £'000 £000 £'000
At 1 January 2010 16,952 276 11,011 28,239
Retained profit for penod - - 21,774 21,774
Actuanal gain on pension scheme - - 5,394 5,394
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension hability - - (1,456) (1,456)
Share based payments - - 539 539
At 31 December 2010 16,952 276 37,262 54,490
Capital
Share redemption Profit & loss
premium reserve reserve Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
At 1 January 2009 16,952 276 8.714 25,942
Retained profit for period - - 5,490 5,490
Actuanal loss on pension scheme - - (5,240) (5,240)
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension hability - - 1,467 1,467
Share based payments - - 580 580
At 31 December 2009 16,952 276 11,011 28,239

PR - - .- - - - -
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Cooper Gay (Holdings) Limited

We have audited the parent company financial statements of Cooper Gay (Heldings) Limited for the year ended 31
December 2010 which comprise the Balance Sheet, the Reconcihiation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds, the
Accounting Policies and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been apphed n their
preparation s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (Umted Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors” Responsibihities Statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the parent company financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Our responsibility 15 to audit and express an opimon on the parent company financial statements 1n accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Audiung (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practuices Board’s Ethical Standards for Audutors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body 1n
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compantes Act 2006 and for no other purpose  We do not, 1n giving
these opimons, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 15
shown or into whose hands 1t may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in wnung

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaiming evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements sufticient (o give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropniate to the parent company’s
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of sigmficant
accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements

In our opimion the parent company financial statements

¢ give atrue and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2010,

* have been properly prepared in accordance with Umted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounung Practice, and
¢ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given 1n the Report of the Directors for the financial year for which the parent
company financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the parent company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report 1n respect of the following matters where the Compames Act 2006 requires us to report to

you 1f, 1n our opimon

¢ adequate accounung records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visiied by us, or

e the parent company financial statements are not 1in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

o certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

e we have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Other matters

We have reported separately on the group financial statements of Cooper Gay (Holdings) Linmted for the year ended
31 December 2010

‘QW\ Char-

Roy Clark (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

London 29 March 2011
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